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THE CONSOLIDATED FUNDPUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON

accountant-general on theCONTROLLER AND

1.0

Administration Act (FAA), 2003 Act 654 and Regulation 188 of the

Included in this reportis the Summary of Expenditure by Items and Heads

2.0 THE SCOPE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

3.0

1-Personnel

of the Constitution of the Republic of 
as the Public Accounts of Ghana are

Jan.
2012

3：： 9■

■ A Balance Sheet
■ A Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
■ A Statement of Receipts and Payments
■ A Cash Flow Statement
■ Notes to the Accounts

REPORT OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

INTRODUCTION

Accountant-General is required by Section 40 of the

prepared on .
established by or under Acts of Parliament and 
Funds.

In compliance with Articles 175 and 176
Ghana, these financial statements known 

the Consolidated Fund only. They do not include other public funds 
I retained Internally Generated

…-OL J 3〜W5A心35 —xuuiieidry runas Government Finance Statistics, 2001 Manual. This manual 
represents a standard for the compilation and presentation of fiscal statistics and 
is part of a world wide effort tz :一:  o

. j operations. This resulted in the EXDAndifriira「lee-— u— —

The Controller and
Financial ----------------------、
Financial Administration Regulations (FAR), 2004, LI 1802 to prepare and
transmit to 1  一一
Planning (MoFEP) the Public Accounts

the Auditor-General and the Minister of Finance and Economic 
on the Consolidated Fund of the Republic

of Ghana by the 15th day of the following month.

The financial statements comprise:

ADOPTION OFGFS & CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE COA
••

The government adopted as an economic and accounting policy the International 
Monetary Fund's Government Finance Stati^H” onm 
represents a standard for the compilation and
is part of a world wide effort to improve government accounting and 
transparency in its operations. This resulted in the reclassification of the 
Expenditure Classes from l-Personnel Emoluments 2-Administration, 3-Service
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FUND

Employees, 2-Use

1'

Integrated Financial Management Information System

involving budgeting

5.0

In line with

CoA was i 
implementation.

Subsequently, the comparative figures for 2011 are not available now since the 
financial statements have been prepared based on the new classification.

* —-. ------- j ―二，the GIFMIS general ledger
implementation began immediately. However.

Chart of Accounts, these

CAGD is carrying out an exercise to re-classify the 2011 transactions to fall in line 
with the 2012 classifications. This exercise will be completed by the end of 2012.

Jan.
2012

These accounts have delayed because 
ledger.

7-Social Benefits and 8-other Expense.
A new CoA has been developed on T
Fund's GFS classification and adopting the United Nations C 
Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been structured l■二］ 
budgeting and reporting under Programme Based Budgeting (PBB), This

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system to e for 
budget preparation and execution, recording, accounting and reporting. It is the 
governments official system and runs on Oracle software. The 2012 budget was 
loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts were prepared using the GIFMIS.

of the deployment of the GIFMIS general

and 4-Investment to 1-Compensation of Employees, 2-Use of Goods & 
Services, 3-Consumption of fixed capital, 4-Interest； 5・Subsidies, 6-Grants, 
7-<2nrial Renpfit^ and Rsfhar Rvrcscc

these bases using the International Monetary
- -------J Classifications of

1 to cater for
/ 3 new〜 J 、 J

used for the preparation of the 2012 budget and its subsequent

Compensation of Employees 仆

-•.…i government黑明；嚣膘雄赢吧散!膘a章eT 

of arrears.

handed over to CAGD and
■ 2 f J l— 

that we could redefine the 2011 
accounts c__

GHANA GAZETTE, 3rd OCTOBER, 2012一---- - _

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

government payroll

器蓦 Without the pa冲nt

4.0 Ghana
(GIFMIS)

integrated computerised financial management system
・• ---- — — -*** J —CKcrHmc

Oracle software. The 2012 budget was

雄哩1,2° W*嘿漆*w震搞。issues 

and inputing errors and the initial p% 藉: 
accounts with the new i----
on time.

could not be presented
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

During 2011, government approved a 20% increase of salaries for all public

6.0 SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

The summary of Receipts and Payments for the month of January is as follows:

Jan 2012

VARIANCE
GHCM GHCM

1,375.69 2,043.10Receipts
1,898.73 2,896.69 (997.96)

(523.04) (853.59) (370.55)

7.0

million as follows: in a Surplus of GHC38.90

REVENUE 1,038.11 733.82 (304.29)
L148.47 694.92 453.55
(110.36) 38.90 149.26

VARIANCE 
GHCM

GH4M
627.41

Jan 2012 
BUDGET

Jan 2012 
ACTUAL 

GHcM

Jan 2012 
ACTUAL

Jan.
2012

Payments
Net Receipts/ Payments

EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

officers on the Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 2011. 
Another increase of 18% was approved for all with effective date as January 1, 
2012. The payments of salaries have always been accounted for on cash basis and ' 
therefore the payment of arrears in 2012 will not reflect the actual 2012 
expenditure.

for the month resulted

Jan 2012 
BUDGET 

GHCM

SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

The Revenue and Expenditu



PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

8.0 ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

8.1 REVENUE

against the expected amount of

against a budget amount of

GH(tl.86million as against a budgeted figure

of Employees, Use of Goods

of

variance ofThis givesbudgeted.

I to 
resulting in aacquired during the

. c - O O C

against the budgeted figure
• ■ , . 一

j paid was GH(tl03t51million against 
Actual expenditure "

aL.

:GH(t591.40million against 
unfavourable

for the month was 
an i

GH4：0.34million 
favourable

Jan.
2012

8.1.3 GRANTS
There was ho Grants received during the month as against the budgeted figure of 
GHC96.33 million.

8.1.4 OTHER REVENUE
Non-Tax Revenue for the month was 
of GH(tl7.38million, giving rise to an adverse variance of GH(tl5.52million.

:the budgeted figure of 
GHc536.39million lower

8.1.1 DIRECT TAX
Direct tax amounted to GH(t371.10million as ; * '

- -------质 ―一 ——w w...

GH(t471.35 million, indicating an unfavourable variance of GHC100.24million.

8.1.2 INDIRECT TAX ,
Indirect tax was GH(t360.85miIlion
GH(t453.04million・ This resulted in an unfavourable variance of GHt92.19 
million.

paid was %； was therefore 

favourable variance.

- of
variance of GHC233.65million.

Benefits, Other Expenses. The total for 
million as against the budget of C

8.2 EXPENDITURE f n ,
Expenditure is made 叩 of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and 
Services, Consumption of Fixed Capital； Interest Subsidies,“氏、;岩 

'"the month amounted to GHM94.92 
GH(tl,148.47million； resulting in an

unfavourable variance of GH(t453.55million.

8.2.1 Compensation of Employees
Compensation of Employees
GH(r508.56milIion 1 L
GH(t82.84million.

8.2.2 Goods and Services
Goods and Services
GH(t639.90million..
than budgeted, indicating

8.2.3 Non Financial A：s哭 th amounted
Non Financial Assets acquired 33 99 million…
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accounts on the coPUBLIC

PUBLIC DEBT
follows:

appropriation9.0

GHC

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

10.0 CONCLUSION

RAPHAEL HWASITUFUOR

"To

JANUARYPAYMENTS

UNUTILISED APPROPRIATION

Domestic Debt 
External Debt

Jan.
2012

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

GH<t million 
2,029.98 

22.30

I wish to take this opportunity to thank all the staff of CAGD and other public 
officers for the immense contributions towards the preparation of the Report and 
the Public Accounts of the Consolidated Fund.

• ，

In compliance therefore with Section 40 of the FAA, 2003 (Act 654) and 
Regulation 188 of the FAR, 2004 (LI 1802), the Report and the Public Accounts 
pn the Consolidated Fund for the month of January, 2012 are hereby presented.

MILLION
19,935.77.

1,716.39
18,219.38

GHANA GAZETTE, 3rd

NSOLIDATED FUND

8.2.4
Debt repayment is made up as
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for the MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2012

17 471,348,861 371,109,138 (100,239,723)
indirect TAX 18

360,852,928
GRANTS 0
OTHER REVENUE 20

21NHIL

22LEVIES 0

LOANS RECEIVED 23 280,735,821 1,267,846,131 987,110,310

24RECOVERIES 0 38,068 38,068

667,412,1831,375,688,654TOTAL RECEIPTS

25
26GOODS AND SERVICES

28

32
诡98,725,85舟[

(853588,50^]
net change in stock of cash

函 8,713,918~|
CASH/BANK balance as at beginning

604,§74,586)
CASH/BANK balance as at end

f、.

29
30

PAYMENT
COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

27
31

VARAINCE
GHCreceipt

DIRECT TAX

INTEREST

SOCIAL BENEFITS
OTHER EXPENSES

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
loan repayments
OTHER PAYMENTS

TOTAL payments

BUDGET 
GHC

453,041,181
96,334,953

508,562,882
266,393,105
233,990,922
114,859,962

24,658,688
567,862,826 

0
182,397,472

1.7,382,500

56,845,339

ACTUAL
GH<

1,855,354

27,496,049

13,903,168 •

(92,188,252)

(96,334,953)

(15,527,146)

(29,349,290)

13,903,168

0 '
STATEMENT of receipts and payments

591,404,452

2,925,178
100,568,306 

2,805 
17,350 
34,339 

2,052,278,740
149,458,172

2 港96,689,3411 [

(82,841,569)
263,467,927
133,422,617
114,857,157
24,641,338

567,828,487
(2,052,278,740)

32,939,299
(997,963,48碎

2,043,100,83?][
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REVENUE and expenditureSTATEMENT OF#*M：THENDED JANUARY 31,2航
GH(tNOTES

REVENUE

256,304,742371,109,13817DIRECT TAX

175,463,082360,852,92818INDIRECT TAX

83,963,6840GRANTS
1,855,354 10,749,99720OTHER REVENUE

| 733,817,421 | [ 526,481,504TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 25 591,404,452 321,332,847

USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES 2,925,178 124,643,669

CONSUMPTION OF FIXED CAPITAL 0

INTEREST 28 100,568,306

SOCIAL BENEFITS 29 2,805

OTHER EXPENSES 30 17,350 11,748,622
TOTAL EXPENDITURE I 694,91商亦| [ 457,725,138
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

38,899,331 | [ 68,756,366 ]

2011 
GH4

GXETTE, 31^2四2学& 201J_
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT JANUARY 31,2012
2,012 2,011

GH( GH(tASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
2,925,591,766

3
Inventories 4 0
Prepayments 5

TOTAL CURRENT ASSET
NON CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 1,495,838,963

7 1,696,884,372

8 4,500
9 0

29,83910
0

2,925,591,766TOTAL ASSETS
18,177,961,042LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
12

13
14 Trust Monies

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES
15External
16

18.177,961,042

TOTAL LIABILITIES (15,252,369,276)21.448,939,743
NET ASSETS

CONTRIBUTED BY

NETWORTH

SI TUFUORRAFAEL

CONTROLLER AND

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables

Domestic
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

68,756,366

(15,321,125,642)

(15,252,369,276)

Work In-Progress

Intangible Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSET

Equity Investments

Infrastructure, plant and Equipment

Land

38,899,331 

(21,487,839,0坦 

但448,939,竺1

Payables

Short-term borrowings

(604,869,586)

12,437,643

Surpluses / (Deficits)
Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits)

1,053,429

(591,378,514)

2,091,576
4,105,421,896

974,854,448

5,082,367,920

3,192,757,674

2,601,379,161

11,939,748,307
7,028,202,678

18,967,950,985

24.050,318,904

ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL
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STATEMENT OF 2012

(69.16)NET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

NET CASHFLOW FROM INVESTMENT IN NON CURRENT AS 0 (0.03)

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

assets

「CASH FLOW FOR THE 
MO^TH ENDED JANUARY 31,-

Purchase/Granting ofNonfinancial assets 
Fixed Asset
Inventory
Work-in-Progress

TOTAL ACQUISITION OF ASSET

2012 
GHC 

MILLIONS

Compensation Of Employees
Goods And Services
Interest
Other Expenses
Social Benefits
Other Payments

TOTAL PAYMENTS

Purchase/Granting of Financial 
Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity

CASH RECEIPTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Taxes
Other Revenue
Other Receipts

TOTAL RECEIPTS
CASH PAYMENT FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Advances
TOTAL ACQUISITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

0.00
0.00
0.00

(1.05)
(1.05)

(591.40)
(2.93)

(100.57)
(0.02)
(0.00)

(1*9.46)
(844.38)

731.96
1.86

41.40
775.22

(0.03)
0.00
0.00

(0.03)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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statement OF CASH FLOW FOR THF
w w in v a 一 Alu

MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2012

SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSET

I

0.04

DNET CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

(A+B+C+D)NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH

[248.71
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING

「（604.跻|
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT CLOSE

•I

(784.43)

「(853.59刃

2012
GHc

Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances

TOTAL SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

0.00 
0.00 
0.04
04

87.55
(22.30)
(65.25)

1,180.29 
(2,029.98)
(849.69)

NET CASHFLOW FROM INVESTMENT IN FIANANC1AL ASSE C
CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Domestic
Inflows
Outflows

NET INCURRENCE OF DOMESTIC LIABILITY
Foreign Liability
Inflow
Outflow

NET INCURRENCE OF FOREIGN LIABILITY
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notes to the accounts

2

5 Prepayments
1,053,429

Total

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0

12,437,643 
0 
0

12,437,643

3 Receivables
Advances
Foreign Missions Remittances & Advances
Other Receivables

Total

(1,307,913,382)
67,936,204 

702,725
17,176,513 

775,885,341 
65,000 

(158,726,987) 
(604,874,586)

617,898,278
625,246,647

8,482,555
921,980

247,334,236
(4,044,733)

1,495,838,963

786,284,715
900,832,056

4,783,840
4,983,761

1,696,884,372 '

7 Equity Investment
Public Boards & Corporations

2012 
GHC

General 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions 
Total

4 Inventories
Printed Materials and Stationery
Office Facilities, Supplies and Accessories
Electrical Accessories
Oils and Lubricants
Spare Parts
Specialised Stock
Refreshment Items
Drugs
Medical Supplies

Total

6 Receivables
Statutory Boards & Corporations

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Treasury Main Account 
MDASub-CF Accounts 
Regional Sub-CF Accounts 
MMDASub-CF Accounts 
Tax Revenue Accounts 
NTR Revenue Accounts 
Special Accounts

Total

Companies
Trust Funds 
International Agencies

Companies
Foreign Governments /Agencies
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

9 Land 0

0

2,091,57612 Payables

(4,105,421,896)13 Short-Term Borrowing
(974,854,448)

14 Trust Monies
(11,939,748,307)

15 External Borrowing
(7,028,202,678)

16 Domestic Borrowing

(87,758,826)
(43,555,021)Goods and Services

0 
29,839 

0 
0 
0 

29,839

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0
0

11 Intangible Assets 
Computer Software

18 INDIRECT TAX
General Taxes on 
Excises

2012
GH(t

17 DIRECT TAX
Payable by Individuals
Payable by Corporations
Unallocatable

Total

• 10 Work -In - Progress
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport Equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Total

8 Infrastructure,Plant and Equipment
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Total

200,954,460
63,756,412

(102,858,697) 
(367,569,569)

Customs and Other Import Duties 
Taxes on Exports

Total

and Other Enterprises

(229,539,08?

(360,852,928)
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notes to the accounts

0
0
0
0

1,128,939,607
41,281,581 
10,073,656 

0 
0

87,551,287 
0 
0 
0

1,267,846,131

0 
0 

27,496,049 
27,496,049

114,326
228,653

13,560,189
13,903,168

65,000
1,674,572

115,782 
0 
0

1,855,354

0 
0 
0 

38,068 
38,068

2012 
GHC

21 NHIL
SSNIT
DOMESTIC
IMPORT

Total

Advances
Total

Export Credit Institutions
Total

24 RECOVERIES -
Securities other than shares

19 GRANT
From foreign governments
From international organizations
From(. -

Total

22 LEVIES
Petroleum Levy ・ Energy Fund
Petroleum Levy - Exploration
Petroleum Levy -Road Fund

Total

20 OTHER REVENUE
Property income
Sales of goods and services
Fines, penalties, and forfeits
Voluntary transfers other than grants 
Miscellaneous and unidentified revenue

Total

Loans
Shares and other equity

23 LOANS RECEIVED
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables)Stocks and Bonds (Long T< 
External Counterpart Funds 
Bilateral Loans 
Multilateral Loans 
External Commercial Institutions 
Domestic Commercial Institutions
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

*

4,500 •
0

29,839
0

34,339

0 
0 

83,434,869 
591,404,452

24,346,366
76,221,940

100,568,306

0
5,405,716 

78,029,154 
0 
0 
0 

83,434,869

28 INTEREST
Non Residents
Residents

Total

2012 
GHt

58,763 
17t280 

400 
46,805 

114,997
8,800 

124,626
4,762 

0 
466,669 

0
843,102

National Pension Contribution
13% SSF Contributidh
Gratuity
Pension
End of Service Benefit (ESB)
Rounding
Superannuation

Total

26 GOODS AND SERVICES
Materials and Office Consumables
Utilities
General Cleaning
Rentals
Travel and Transport
Repairs and Maintenance
Training, Seminar and Conference Cost
Consultancy Expenses
Special Services
Other Charges and Fees
Emergency Services

Total

27 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed asset
Inventories
Work In Progress
Finished Goods

Total

25 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES
Established Position 
Non Established Post 
Allowances
National Pension Contribution *

Total

-
•■
•■•I
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notes to the accounts

17,35030 OTHER EXPENSES

2012 
GHC

31 LOAN REPAYMENTS
Domestic
External
Total

, 2,029/981,692
22,297,048

2,052,278,740

1,058,429
150,491,320

(2,091,576)
149,458,172

0 
0 

2,805 
2,805

32 OTHER PAYMENTS
Advance
Trust Monies
Accounts Payable
Total

29 SOCIAL BENEFITS
Social security benefits in cash
Social assistance benefits in cash
Employer social benefits in cash

Total
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1951

Committee

Integrated Personnel and Payroll Database

tand Rural Development

Ministry of Employmen 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
Ministry of Interior 
Ministry of Local Governmen

ARIC 
BMS 
BoG 
CAG 
CAGD 
CF 
COA 
CoFoG 
CoE 
DACF 
DIG 
DMD 
EOCO 
FAA 
FAR 
FWSC 
GCB 
GCNet 
GES 
GFS 
GHS 
GIFMIS 
GoG 
GRA 
HIPC 
HRMS 
I AAA 
ICT 
IGF 
IPPD 
MDA 
MDBS 
MDRI 
MEST 
MESW 
MFA 
MINT 
MLGRD

and Technology 
tand Social Welfare

ai

ACRONYMS
Audit Report Implementation 
Budget Management System 
Bank of Ghana
Controller and Accountant - General

-GeneraFs DepartmentController and Accountant
Consolidated Fund 
Chart of Accounts
Classification of Functions of Government
Compensation of Employees
Districts Assemblies Common Fund
Diversiture Implementation Committee
Debts Management Division
Economic and Organised Crime Office
Financial Administration Act, 2003 (Act 654)
Financial Administration Regulations, 2004 (LI 1802] 
Fair Wages and Salaries Commission
Ghana Commercial Bank
Ghana Community Network
Ghana Education Service
Government Finance Statistics
Ghana Health Service
Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
Government of Ghana
Ghana Revenue Authority
Highly Indebted Poor Country
Human Resource Management System .、
Internal Audit Agency Act 2003 (Act 658)
Information Technology
Internally Generated Funds

V 1 A _ L — 一 入

Ministries, Departments and Agencies 
Multi-Donor Budgetary S叩port 
Multilateral Debt Relief initiative 
Ministry of Environment, Science

nd Regional Integration

1
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A

MLNR 
MMDA 
MoC 
MoCC 
MoD 
MoE 
MoEN 
MoFA 
MoFEP 
MoH 
MOI 
NfoJAD 
MoRH 
MoT 
M0T1 
MoWAC 
MoYS 
MWRWH 
NITA 
NHIL 
NPT 
OMCs 
PDI 
P【A 
PPA 
PFM 
PUFMARP 
SSNIT 
SSPP 
SIP 
TSA

Municipal and District Assembly

Ministry of Communication
Ministry of Chieftaincy and Cultureof Chieftaincy and Culture
Ministry of Defence
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Energy
Ministry of Food and Agriculture --
Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
Ministry of Health
Ministry of Information
Ministry of Justice and Attorney-General's Department
Ministry of Road and Highways
Ministry ofTransport
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Ministry ofWomen and Children Affairs
Ministry of Youth and Sports
Ministry of Water Resources, Works and Housing
National Information Technology Agency
National Health Insurance Levy
Non Project Type
Oil Marketing Companies
Public Debt and Investment
Project Implementation Agencies
Public Procurement Act 2003, (Act 663)

acronyms

Ministry of Lands and Natural Resources

Metropolitan, 1 -

Public Financial Management
Public Financial Management Reforms Programme
Social Security and National Insurance Trust
Single Spine Pay Policy
Social Investment Programme
Treasury Single Account
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FUND

AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL ON THE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

i

3.0 ADOPTION OF GFS &

1-Compensation

The Controller and Accountant-General f
Financial Administration Act (FAA), 2003 Act 654 and  
Financial Administration Regulations (FAR), 2004, LI 1802 
a    £ d j - 一 A 1 • ■ — . •

Feb.
2012

REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

to prepare and 
j and Economic 

the Consolidated Fund of the Republic

Monetary Fund's Government Fi吁吁: 
represents a stan<-------
is part of a world wide 
transparency in its operations. Tms -=- 
Expenditure Classes from 国嗦黑 Em。】。 
and investment to ^Compensation-

In compliance with Articles 175
• ； the Public Accounts of Ghana are

the Consolidated Fund only. They 加 not include othe了吧竺g 

established by or under Acts of Parliament;-----
Funds.

■ A Balance Sheet
■ A Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
■ A Statement of Receipts and Payments
■ A Cash Flow Statement
■ Notes to the Accounts

Included in this report is the Summary of Expenditure by Items and Heads

II

CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE COA

accounting policy the International 
Statistics, L------ " 一… 1
and presentation of fiscal statistics and 

effort to improve government accounting and 
・ ■ j rarMsiflcation of the

* , 3-Service 
of Goods &

^CTOBERu2012

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

2.0 THE SCOPE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

and 176 of the Constitution of the Republic of 

Ghana, these financial statements known as
prepared on --- --- ------------------------- ’and retained Internally Generated

is required by Section 40 of the 
I Regulation 188 of the 

,_______;(
transmit to the Auditor-General and the Minister of Finance 
Planning (MoFEP) the Public Accounts onf " 
of Ghana by the 15th day of the following month.

The financial statements comprise:

economic and

nd presentation

the reclassification
2-Administradon, J

2 Use c：

The government adopted as an —p r - ■
 2001 Manual. This manual

dard for the compilation and preseuuiuuii ol..
, ,…government
This resulted in

of Employees,



2012 

CONSOLIDATED FUND

Services, 3-Consumption

on

4.0

general ledger was handed to CAGD andover

5.0

]954
■

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE

i

CAGD is carrying out an exercise to re-classify the 2011 transactions to fall in line 
with the 2012 classifications. This exercise will be completed by the end of 2012.

Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
(GIFMIS)

Feb.
2012

accounts with the new 
on time.

implementation began im:

- .are not available now since the
— A ~

financial statements have been prepared based on the new classification.

CoA was used for the preparation 
implementation.

Subsequently, the comparative figures for 2011

u j on these bases using the International Monetary
Mi adopting the United Nations Classifications of

3 Based Budgeting (PBB). This new 
of the 2012 budget and its subsequent

position that we could redefine the 2011 
.」ese accounts could not be

10 迥2'职 G黑臂严dger was handed over to CAGD and

government policy all employees( 一一 厂〜-一… d
:网】c 华二 Guucrure with effect from January 1,2010. As an 

, when these salaries are aDDrovpH ee—- --
of arrears.

Services； 3-Consumption of fixed capital, 4-Interest, 5-Subsidies, 6-Grants, 
7-Social Benefits and 8-other Expense.

A new CoA has been developed
Fund's GFS classification l二 …〜
Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been structured to cater for 
budgeting and reporting under Programme「一」d..七土： 下孔

■ ----土-_ —£ 4-1% c * -

Compensation of Employees

In line with 厂”二-—…employees on government payroll are 
paid on the Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1,2010. As an 七

八---- ： 京 are approved, payments were effected without the paymen

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system
J_ J - . - • . -

governments official system and runs on Oracle software. The 2012 budget was 
loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts were prepared using the GIFMIS.

These accounts have delayed because of the deployment of the GIFMIS general 
ledger, "

膘*s 津*%落:湾°veg a 20% increase of salaries for all public 
the Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 20”・

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system to e for 
budget preparation and execution, recording； accounting and reporting. It is the

loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts
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fund

SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS6.0

The summary of Receipts and Payments for the month of February is as follows:

Feb 2012

VARIANCE
GH(tMGHCM

1,375.69 2,003.10
Receipts

63.631,835.091,898.73

691.04168.01(523.04)

SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE7.0
deficit of GHC196.22Expenditure for the month resulted in a

(307.42)730.691,038.11REVENUE 183.61964.461,148.47EXPENDITURE (123.81)(234.17)(110.36)SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

GH<tM
627.41

The Revenue and 
million as follows:

2012

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

Feb 2012 
BUDGET

Feb 2012 
ACTUAL

Feb.
2012

Feb 2012 
BUDGET 

GHCM

Feb 2012 
ACTUAL 

GHCM

VARIANCE 
GHCM

Payments
Net Receipts/ Payments

Another increase of 18% was approved for all with effective dg 
2012. The payments of salaries have always been accounted for

Will not reflect the

as January 1, 
on cash basis and 
-J actual 2012

烈竺LSI M也 effective date

therefore the payment of arrears in 2012 
expenditure. ~
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE

additional statistics8.0

IREVENUE8.1

budget

8.1.3 Grants

I

Services, Consumption of Fixed Capital, Interest Subsidies, Grants, Social Benefits,

Compensation ofEmployees
GHC865.88million against

against the budgeted figure of

resulting in

GH(t456.44million against 
al

Other Expenses. The total for the month amounted to GHC964.86 million as 
against the budget of GH(tl,148.47million, resulting in a favourable variance of 
mi no x a - J

GHd98.99million : 。
was therefore GH(t540.91miIlion lower

Feb.
2012

- a Duagec amount of 
favourable variance of GHC3.40 million.

8.1.1 Direct Tax 
Direct tax <  
GHC471.35 million, indicating

8.2 EXPENDITURE
Expenditure is made up of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and

 1 amount of
unfavourable variance of GH(t206.83million.

8.1.2 Indirect Tax 
Indirect tax was 
GH(r453.04million, This resulted in

= y mt

There was no Grants received during the month as against the budgeted figure of 
GHC96.33 million.

figure of GHC233.99 
GHc217.01million.

GHt639.90million. Actual
than budgeted； indicating a favourable variance.

8.2.3 Non Financial Assets
Non Financial Assets for the i

million

ct l axamounted to GHC264.52millionas against the expected
，---------。厂口施。八£口2

olXa -—-

GHc508.56million
GH<357.32million.

GH«183.61million,

8.2.1 Compensation ofEmployees
Compensation of Employees for the 

budgeted. This
month was GHC865.88million against 

gives an unfavourable variance of

8.1.4 Other Revenue
Non-Tax Revenue for the month was GHC9.73million as against a budgeted figure 
ofGHC17.38million, giving rise to an adverse variance of GHC7.65million.

month was GHcl6.98million against the budgeted 
lion resulting in a favourable variance of

GHANA GAZETTE： 3rd OCTOBER,

CONSOLIDATED FUND

8.2.2 Goods and Services
Goods and Services paid was 

1 expenditure
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fund

8.2.4 PUBLIC DEBT

Debt repayment is made up as follows：
GHc million

Domestic Debt 727.10

External Debt 23.63 i

9.0 APPROPRIATION

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

UNUTILISED APPRORIATION AS FEBRUARY

UNUTILISED APPROPRIATION 17,111.38

10.0 CONCLUSION

GHC

MILLION

19,935.77

2,824.39

Feb.
2012

In compliance therefore with Section 40 of the FAA, 2003 (Act 654) 
Regulation 188 of the FAR, 2004 (LI 1802), the Report and l…—- 
on I

Raphael 板 asi tufuoT 
CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

I wish to take this opportunity to thank all the staff of CAGD and other public 
officers for the immense contributions towards the preparation of the Report and 
the Public Accounts of the Consolidated Fund.

2012

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

, - 一)and
I the Public Accounts

— - —— — — — 一一  —— 、 

the Consolidated Fund for the month of February, 2012 are hereby presented.
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STATEMENT OF

NOTES

24
2,003,102,3211,375,688,654TOTAL RECEIPTS

25

TOTAL PAYMENTS ][1,898,725,857 1,835,094,073

NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH
168,008,248

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING
(604,869,586)1

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT END
(436,861,338)]

17
18
19
20
21

N0N-F1NANCIAL ASSETS
INTEREST
SOCIAL BENEFITS
OTHER EXPENSES
LOAN REPAYMENTS
OTHER PAYMENTS

PAYMENT
COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES
GOODS AND SERVICES

LEVIES
LOANS RECEIVED
RECOVERIES

r receiptsand payments 
MONW ENDED FEBRUARY 29 …

22
23

27
28
29
30
31
32

508,562,882
266,393,105

264,519,446 

456,443,034 
0 

9,728,499 
66,605,235 

17,532,513 
1,187,848,452 

425,142

865,875,092
13,454,354

16,983,761

85,515,766
2,805

12,750
750,731,655
102,517,891

ACTUAL 
GHC

(206,829,415)

3,401,854

RECEIPT
DIRECT TAX
INDIRECT TAX
GRANTS
OTHER REVENUE
NHIL

233,990,922
114,859,962

24,658,688

567,862,826 
0

182,397,472

471,348,861 

453,041,181 
96,334,953 
17,382,500 
56,845,339 

0 
280,735,821 

0

,2012 
budget 

GHC

(357,312,210)
252,938,751

217,007,161
29,344,196
24,655,883

567,850,076 [

(750,731,655) f

79,879,581 I

]| 63,631 质司

VARAINCE 
GHc

(7,654,001)
9,759,896

17,532,513
907,112,631

425,142
]| 723,748,619"



^^GAZETTRaRo
0 1959

MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 29; 2012
2012 2011
GH< GHt

REVENUE

direct tax 17 264,519,446 215,065,937
indirect tax 18 456,443,034 370,430,300

GRANTS 19 0 336,751,964

OTHER REVENUE 20 9,728,499 11,140,700

TOTAL REVENUE 730,690,979 933,388,902

EXPENDITURE

376,964,974865;875,092COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 25

116,965,66913,454,35426USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

0CONSUMPTION OF FIXED CAPITAL

85,515,76628INTEREST

2,80529SOCIAL BENEFITS
150,793,41412,75030OTHER EXPENSES
644,724,058964,860,767

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
288,664,844(234,169,788)

SURPLUS/fDEFICIT)

I

STATEMENTOF revenue and EXPENDITURE
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1960

FEBRUARY 2% 2012
baunce sheet as at

total current asset

3同54,775,55f]2,791,344,216TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
18,418,479,985

TOTAL LIABILITIES
24,474,453,748

(21,683,109,盘IJ]

RAPHAEL K'

6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13
14

15
16

2
3
4
5

2012 
GHC

1,495,838,963
1,696,884,372

16,958,443 
0 

49,465 
0

3,209,731,244

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Equity Investments

non- current liabilities
External
Domestic

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Infrastructure, plant and Equipment 
Land
Work In-Progress
Intangible Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSET

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Short-term borrowings
Trust Monies

total current liabilities

2011 
GHC 

3,454,775,552

NET ASSETS
CONTRIBUTED BY
Surpluses/(Deficits)
Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits)

NETWORTH

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments

12,080,659,004
7,062,300,768

19,142,959,771

3,271,874 
4,367,529,906 

960,692,196 
5,331,493,976

(195,270,457)
(21,487,839,074：

531)1 

(436,860,118) 
12,015,958 

10,011 
6,447,121 

(418,387,028^

]I 18,418,"逐｝
\ (14,963goS^l

288,664,84%
(15,252曾羿、

炙TUFUOR
CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL
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MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 29,

(247.15)ANET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

0.00CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

SALE NON-CURRENT ASSET
BNET CASHFLOW FROM INVESTMENT IN NON CURRENT ASSETS

1961

(16.98)
0.00

total acquisition financial assets 
SALE/RECOVERY of FINANCIAL ASSET

0.00
0.00
0.00

(5.40)
(5.40)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.43

2012 
GHe 

million

Purchase/Granting Of Nonfinancial Assets 
Fixed Asset
Inventory
Work-In-Progress
total acquisition of asset

Compensation Of Employees
Goods And Services
Interest
Other Expenses
Social Benefits
Other Payments
TOTAL PAYMENTS

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH RECEIPTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Taxes
Other Revenue
Other Receipts
TOTAL RECEIPTS /
CASH PAYMENT FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Purchase/Granting of Financial assets 
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances 八

(16.97) 
(0.01)
0.00

(16.98)

(865.88)
(13.45)
(85.52)

(0.01)
(0.00)

©7.12)
(1,061.98)

720.96
9.73

84.14
¥14.83

20J2

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE
j 2012



2012
1962

FEBRUARY 29, 2012

c

NET CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY D 437.12

NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH | 168.01 |

| (604.87)|
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT CLOSE

| (436.86)|

2012
GHc

~~(0^43)

4.97

(A+B+C+D)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING

164.54
(23.63)

(140.91)

0.00 
1,023.31 
(727.10] 
296.21

total sale/recovery of financial assets
NET CASHFLOWFROM INVESTMENT IN FIANANCIAL ASSETS

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Domestic Liabilities
Inflows •
Outflows
NET INCURRENCE OF DOMESTIC LIABILITY

Foreign Liability
Inflow
Outflow
NET INCURRENCE OF FOREIGN LIABILITY
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1963
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

6,447,1215 Prepayments

0 
10,011 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

10,011

. 12,015,958 
0 
0 

12,015,958

786,284,715
900,832,056

4,783,840
4,983,761

1,696,884,372

617,898,278
625,246,647

8,482,555
921,980

247,334,236
(4,044,733)

1,495,838,963

2012
GHc

(912,613,055)
33,808,359

702,725
17,176,513

1,583,961,484
130,000 

(1,160,026,143) 
(436,860,118)

6 Receivables
Statutory Boards & Corporations
Companies
Foreign Governments / Agencies
General
Miscellaneous
Provisions
Total

3 Receivables
Advances
Foreign Missions Remittances & Advances
Other Receivables
Total

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Treasury Main Account 
MDA Sub-CF Accounts 
Regional Sub-CF Accounts 
MMDA Sub-CF Accounts 
Tax Revenue Accounts 
NTR Revenue Accounts 
Special Accounts
Total

4 Inventories
Printed Materials and Stationery
Office Facilities, Supplies and Accessories
Electrical Accessories '
Oils and Lubricants
Spare Parts
Specialised Stock
Refreshment Items
Drugs
Medical Supplies
Total

7 Equity Investment
Public Boards & Corporations
Companies
Trust Funds
•nternational Agencies
Total
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1964

TO THE ACCOUNTSNOTES 2012

GHC

I,Pant and Equipment

9 Land

0

12 Payables 3,271,874

13 Short-Term Borrowing 4,367,529,906

14 Trust Monies 922,746,360

15 External Borrowing 12,080,659,004
! 16 Domestic Borrowing 7,062,300,768

1

mport Duties

7

0 
29,839 

0 
19,627 

0 
49,465

GH^JAGAZETTEz

11 Intangible Assets 
Computer Software

151,580 
57,818 

16,631,501 
0 

117,543 
0 

..16,958,443

0

143,423,594
46,231,352 

266,788,087 
0

456,443,034

Unallocatable
Total

170,085,444 
.69,250,224 

25,183778
264,519,446

10 Work-In-Progress
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport Equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Total

8 Infrastructure,
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings 
Other structures

.Transport equipment
Other machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure Assets
Total

18 INDIRECT TAX
General Taxes on
Excises
Customs and Other I
Taxes on Exports
Total

Goods and Services

17 DIRECT TAX
Payable by Individuals
Payable by Corporations and Other Enterprises
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2012
GH<

I

37,945,836
0

28,659,399
66,605,235

0 
0 
0 

425,142 
425,142

728,024,557 
64,703,335 

230,577,108 
0 
0 

164,543,452 
0 
0 
0

1,187,848,452

144,118
288,236

17,100,160
17,532,513

65,000 
7,481,497 

335,832 
0 

1,846,169 
9,728,499

0 
0 
0
0

21 NHIL
SSNIT
DOMESTIC
IMPORT
Total

24 RECOVERIES
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances
Total

22 LEVIES
Import NHIL
Petroleum Levy - Energy Fund 
Petroleum Levy - Exploration 
Petroleum Levy - Road Fund 
Total

20 OTHER REVENUE
Property income
Sales of goods and services
Fines, penalties, and forfeits
Voluntary transfers other than grants 
Miscellaneous and unidentified revenue
Total

19 GRANT
From foreign governments
From international organizations
From other general government units
Total

23 LOANS RECEIVED
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds 
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions
Export Credit Institutions
Total



notes to the accounts
2012

GHC

25

16,953,943 
0 

19,627 
0 

16,973,570
28 INTEREST

Non Residents
Residents
Total

0 
10,250,120 
37,084,334 

0 
0 
0 

47,334,454

818,540,638 
0 
0 

47,334,454 
865,875,092

13,378,955
72,136,811

85,515,766

6,688,959
7,571

13,406
36,000 

4,099,426 
57,462 

296,768 
512,940 

1,200,000 
541,822

0
13,454,354

National Pension Contribution
13% SSF Contribution
Gratuity
Pension
End of Service Benefit (ESB)
Rounding
Superannuation
Total

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES
Established Position 
Non Established Post 
Allowances
National Pension Contribution
Total

26 GOODSAND SERVICES
Materials and Office Consumables
Utilities
General Cleaning
Rentals "
Travel and Transport
Repairs and Maintenance
Training, Seminar and Conference Cost
Consultancy Expenses
Special Services
Other Charges and Fees
Emergency Services
Total

27 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed asset
Inventories
Work In Progress
Finished Goods
Total
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2012
GHC

30 OTHER EXPENSES 12,750

■

463,624,292
66,995,589 

196,479,018 
0 

14,200,281 
1,034,360 
3,361,311 

0
5,036,803

750,731,655

5,397,149 
98,300,000 
(1,180,298)

102,517,891

29 SOCIAL BENEFITS
Social security benefits in cash
Social assistance benefits in cash 
Employer social benefits in cash
Total

0 
0 

2,805 
2,80S

31 LOAN REPAYMENTS /
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds 
Bilateral Loans 
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions 
Domestic Commercial Institutions 
Export Credit Institutions
Total

32 OTHER PAYMENTS
Advance
Trust Monies 
Accounts Payable 
Total
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1970

gy

nment and Rural Development

・ General
・ GeneraKs Department

ARIC 
BMS 
BoG 
CAG 
CAGD 
CF 
COA 
CoFoG 
CoE 
DACF 
DIG 
DMD 
EOCO 
FAA 
FAR 
HVSC 
GCB 
GCNet 
GES 
GFS 
GHS 
GIFMIS 
GoG 
GRA 
HIPC 
HRMS 
IAAA 
ICT 
IGF 
IPPD 
MDA 
MDBS 
MDRI 
MEST 
MESW 
MFA
MINT 
MLGRD

Information Technology
Internally Generated Funds
Integrated Personnel and Payroll Database
Ministries, Departments and Agencies

ACRONYMS
Audit Report Implementation Committee 
Budget Management System 
Bank of Ghana 
Controller and Accountant 
Controller and Accountant 
Consolidated Fund 
Chart of Accounts 
Classification of Functions of Government 
Compensation of Employees 
Districts Assemblies Common Fund 
Diversiture Implementation Committee 
Debts Management Division 
Economic and Organised Crime Office 
Financial Administration Act, 2003 (Act 654) 
Financial Administration Regulations, 2004 (LI 1802) 
Fair Wages and Salaries Commission 
Ghana Commercial Bank
Ghana Community Network 
Ghana Education Service "
Government Finance Statistics 
Ghana Health Service
Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
Government of Ghana
Ghana Revenue Authority 
Highly Indebted Poor Countiy 
Human Resource Management System 
Internal Audit Agency Act 2003 (Act 658)

Ministry of Employment and Social
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Regional mtegration
Ministry of Interior
Ministry of Local Governmr * •-

Multi-Donor Budgetary Support
Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative
怦stry of Environment, Science and Technolo；

Welfare
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1971

ces 
-Jsembly

MLNR 
MMDA 
MoC 
MoCC 
MoD 
MoE 
MoEN 
MoFA 
MoFEP 
MoH 
MOI 
MoJAD 
MoRH 
MoT 
MOTI 
MoWAC 
MoYS 
MWRWH 
NITA 
NHIL 
NPT 
OMCs 
PDI 
PIA 
PPA 
PFM . 
PUFMARP 
SSNIT 
SSPP 
SIP 
TSA

ACRONYMS
Ministry of Lands and Natural Resourc** 
Metropolitan, Municipal and District As； 
Ministry of Communication
Ministry of Chieftaincy and Culture
Ministry of Defence
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Energy
Ministry of-Food and Agriculture
Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
Ministry of Health
Ministry of Information
Ministry of Justice and Attorney-General's Department
Ministry of Road and Highways
Ministry ofTransport
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Ministry ofWomen and Children Affairs
Ministry ofYouth and Sports
Ministry of Water Resources, Works and Housing
National Information Technology Agency
National Health Insurance Levy
Non Project Type
Oil Marketing Companies
Public Debt and Investment
Project Implementation Agencies
Public Procurement Act 2003, (Act 663)
Public Financial Management
Public Financial Management Reforms Programme
Social Security and National Insurance Trust

Single Spine Pay Policy
Social Investment Programme
Treasury Single Account

egwg.-
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ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUNDPUBLIC ACCOUNTS

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL ON THE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Included in this report is the Summary of Expenditure by Items and Heads

2.0

3.0

effort to i

REPORT OF THE 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

THE SCOPE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

compliance with Articles 175 ;' 
statements known

March.
2012

prepared on「 
established by 
Funds,

The Controller and Accountant-General is required by Section 40 of the 
Financial Administration Act (FAA), 2003 Act 654 and Regulation 188 of the 
Financial Administration Regulations (FAR), 2004, LI 1802 to prepare and 
transmit to the Auditor-General and the Minister of Finance and Economic 
Planning (MoFEP) the Public Accounts on the Consolidated Fund of the Republic 
of Ghana by the 15th day of the following month.

The financial statements comprise:

■ A Balance Sheet
■ A Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
■ A Statement of Receipts and Payments
■ A Cash Flow Statement
■ Notes to the Accounts

ADOPTION OF GFS & CHANGE

The government adopted as an u—心 
mu 〜j Government Finance 

standard for the 
a world wide

IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE COA

economic and ； ■
U ■ ——D £* VAAAAA —-

- apstics, 2001 Manual. This manual 
presentation of fiscal statistics and 

government accounting and

燃攵窘黑盘* 175 and 176 of the Constitution of the Republic of

Monetary Fund's
represents a standard for the compilation and
transparency iiT^^onpr V improve government accounting and
Expenditure Classes his resulted in the reclassification of theMasses from Personnel Emoluments 2.Adminis何on. Service

accounting policy the International



1973

FUND

4.0

. 1 Vimplementation began immediately. However；

Chart of Accounts, these

CAGD is carrying out an exercise to re-classify the 2011 transactions to fall in line 
with the 2012 classifications. This exercise will be completed by the end of 2012.

March.
2012

Subsequently, the comparative figures for 2011 are not available now since the 
financial statements have been prepared based on the new classification.

In L… —D — ------ 
Paid on the Single Spine Salary Structure 
when these salaries are i 」f f 
of arrears.

and ^Investment to ^Compensation of 匚叩巧* 
Services, 3-Consumption of fixed capital, 4-Interest, 

厂Id 口c—H O —— z

budget preparation and execution, recording, accounting and reporting. It is the 
governments official system and runs on L.
loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts were

A new CoA has been developed onf  
Fund's GFS classification and adopting the United Nations 
Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been 二—…a 皿、 
budgeting and reporting under Programme Based Budgeting (PBB). This

— A «r a 一 ••■**■** J — A-l 一 - *

implementation.

GHANA GAZETTE, 3rd OCTOBER, 2012_______ ___________________ _ ~

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

Classifications of 
structured to cater for 

— -p—o.“2 new
CoA was used for the preparation of the 2012 budget and its subsequent

government payroll are to be
< CE 八 Ac cm] 

effected without the payment

■ was handed over to CAGD and 
due to issues involving budgeting 
一..j could redefine the 2011 
accounts could not be presented

S・0 Compensation of Employees
line with government policy, all employees on government payroll l-----二

c・‘一fzicryqtructurewitheffectfi'omjanuaiyi, 2010.Asand 
approved, payments were c.._.，—^^nt-

Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
(GIFMIS)

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system to e for
• ■ • • Ta. A.1__ J

Oracle software. The 2012 budget was 
prepared using the GIFMIS.

These accounts have delayed because of the deployment of the GIFMIS general 
ledger.

In February 2012, the GIFMIS general ledger
—- ■ TT - 一 -一―(

and inputing errors and the initial position that we 
accounts with the new Chart of Accounts； these J-----
on time.

Employees, 2-Use of Goods & 
；5-Subsidies, 6-Grants,

^Compensation of

7-Social Benefits and 8-other Expense.

these bases using the International Monetary

Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

6.0 SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

The summary of Receipts and Payments for the month of March is as follows:

Receipts
1,898.73 1,889.41 9.32

(523.04) 118.63 641.67

7.0 SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

Expenditure for the month resulted ip a Surplus of

REVENUE 1,038.11 1,126.80 88.69
EXPENDITURE

1448.47 923.42 225.05SURPLUS/fDEFICIT)
(110.36) 203.38 313-74

t

VARIANCE 
GHeM

GHCM
1,375.69

GHcfM
632.35

- A .

therefore the payment of arrears in 2012 will not reflect the actual 2012
expenditure. ,

Mar 2012 
BUDGET

Mar 2012 
ACTUAL
GH(tM 
2,008.04

Mar. 2012 
actual 

gh(tm

March.
2012

Mar, 2012
BUDGET

GHCM

Payments
Net Receipts/ Payments

During 2011, government approved
officers on I o' [ -、 “
Another increase of 18% was approved for all with effective date as January ]
2012. The payments of salaries have always been accounted for on cash basis and

1 a 20% increase of salaries for all public 
the°Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 2011.

■ 一 ■ / • •、 /• • la V

The Revenue and 匚十 
GHc214.28million as follows:

Mar 2012 
VARIANCE
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

8.0 ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

REVENUE8.1

GH(t471.35 million, indicating a favourable variance of GH(t58.98million.

GHC447.78million against

favourable variance of

ofunfavourableThis givesbudgeted.

GHC45.42million against the budgeted 
ine in a favourable variance of

for the month was 
an i

March.
2012

Up UJL ——式_ /
of Fixed Capital, Interest Subsidies, Grants； Social Benefits, 

Other Expenses, The total for the month amounted to GHC923.42 million as
• — 一 m一 ….jHna in a favourable variance of

i was i 
resulting

GHC772.37million against 
variance cf

8.2.2 Goods and Services
Goods and Services 
GH(t639.90million. x 
than budgeted, indicating

8.1.3 Grants
Grants received during the month was GH(t40.26millionas against the budgeted 
figure of GH(t96.33 million. This resulted in adverse variance of GHC56.07

8.2 EXPENDITURE
Expenditure is made up
Services, Consumption c_

8.2.3 Non Financial Assets
Non Financial Assets 
figure of GHC233.99 
GH(tl88.54million.

8.1-1 Direct Tax
Direct tax amounted to GH$530.33millionas against the expected amount of

for the month 
million i

of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and 

month amounted to GHC923.42 million as 
against the budget of GH(tL148.47milHon, resulting in a 1 
GH(t225.05million.
8.2.1 8.2.1 Compensation of Employees
Compensation of Employees 1 ' 
GH(t508.56milIion 1 \ 
GH(t263.81million.

8.1.2 Indirect Tax
Indirect tax was GH<t447.78million against a budget amount of 
GH(t453.04million. This resulted in an unfavourable variance of GHC5.26 million.

paid was GHnoi.ujiuiy , 
“ j was therefore

i A

favourable variance.

― GHC151.05million against the budgeted figure of
Actual expenditure therefore GHC488.85million lower 

al-.

8.1.4 Other Revenue
Non-Tax Revenue for the month was GH(tl08.43million as against a budgeted 
figure of GHC17.38million, giving rise to a 1------- 二
GH(t9L05millioni
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ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUNDPUBLIC

8.2.4 PUBLIC DEBT

9 APPROPRIATION

GHC
MILLION

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

UTILISED APPRORIATION AS MARCH

UNUTILISED APPROPRIATION

10 CONCLUSION

of the FAA, 2003 (Act 654) and

RAPHAEL

Domestic Debt
External Debt

?sh to take this opportunity to thank all the staff of CAGD and other public 
------------contributions towards the preparation of the Report and

GHCmillion
837.12

44.37

March.
2012

ASITUFUOR Z
CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

Regulation 188 of the I 、 ___ 八
on the Consolidated Fund for the month of M

19,935.77
3,890.29

16,045.48

IL -
officers for the immense( 一. .
the Public Accounts of the Consolidated Fund.

In compliance therefore with Section 40( 、
FAR, 2004 (LI 1802), the Report and the Public Accounts 

larch, 2012 are hereby presented.

Debt repayment is made up as follows:
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MONTH ENDED MARCH 31,
BUDGET ACTUAL VARAINCE

NOTES GHC GHC GHC

17 471,348,861 530,327,093 58,978,232

453,041,18118 447,782,154 (5,259,026)jNDlRECTTAX

96,334,953 40,264,596 (56,070,357)19grants
91,048,388108,430,88817,382,50020OTHER REVENUE

(16,307,279)40,538,05956,845,33921NH1L
16,711,13416,711,134022LEVIES

542,781,092823,516,913280,735,82123LOANS RECEIVED
471,299471,299024RECOVERIES

632,353,4832,008,042,1371,375,688,654TOTAL RECEIPTS

PAYMENTS
772,365,090508,562,882COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 25

14,977,122266,393,10526GOODS AND SERVICES 188,569,88245,421,040233,990,92227NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (21,211,949)136,071,911114,859,96228interest 24,656,7931,89624,658,688
SOCIAL BENEFITS 29 567,858,7604,066

567,862,826
OTHER EXPENSES 30

881,489,565
0

loan repayments 31 39,083,222
“397,472 9311^46OTHER PAYMENTS 32 1,^9,413,911

【725,85?
total payments 118,628,225

NET change in stock of cash
(4}6,860,1理1

CASH/BANK balance as at beginning
(318gh892)

CASH/BANK balance as at end

111

(263,802,208)

251,415,983

(881,489,565)

143,314,250

receipts
DIRECT TAX

statement of receipts and payments 
n/inMTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2012
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
MARCH 31, 2012MONTH ENDED

NOTES
REVENUE

530,327,093 208,824,19917DIRECT TAX

447,782,154 311,259,46118INDIRECT TAX

40,264,59619 69,691,409GRANTS

108,430,888OTHER REVENUE 20 21,363,700
1,126,804,| 611,138,无T]TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 772,365,09025 408,840,934

USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES 14,977,122 291,128,615

CONSUMPTION OF FIXED CAPITAL 0

INTEREST 28 136,071,911

SOCIAL BENEFITS 29 1,896

OTHER EXPENSES 174,709,41630 4,066

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1 | 874,678,964]923,420,085

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ]| (263,540495)]203,384,646

2012
GHC

2011 
GHc
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1979

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31 2012
2,012 2,011

NOTES GHC GHcASSETS
3,194,838,940CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2
Receivables 3
Inventories 4 10,011
Prepayments 5 27,366,855

TOTAL CURRENT ASSET (279,309,397)

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 6 1,495,838,963

7 1,696,884,372

8 58,449,189

Land 9 0

Work In-Progress 10 3,979,759

Intangible Assets 011

3,255,152,284TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSET

3,194,838,9402,975,842,888TOTAL ASSETS

18,390,908,550LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
5,071,35712Payables

4,417,250,10513Short-term borrowings
997,979,38914Trust Monies

S,420,3g851TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES:

15External
16Domestic

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

18,390,908,55024,455,567,773 j
total liabilities

(15,196,069,610)(21,479,724,886)
NET ASSETS

CONTRIBUTED BY:

NETWORTH

tufuor

li

Equity Investments

Infrastructure, plant and Equipment

(318,230,920)

11,544,658

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

8,114,189

(21,487,839,074) 

| (21,479,724,886)]

Surpluses / (Deficits)

Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits)

12,036,284,774

6,998,982,149

19,035,266,922

(263,540,195) 

(14,932,529,415) 

(lS,i96,069,6101|
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MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2012

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

202.21NET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

NET CASHFLOW FROM INVESTMENT IN NON CURRENT ASSETS B

SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSET

(45.42)
0.00

2012 
GHC 

MILLIONS

CASH PAYMENT FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Compensation Of Employees
Goods And Services
Interest
Other Expenses
Social Benefits
Other Payments

TOTAL PAYMENTS

Purchase/Granting OfNonfinancial Assets 
Fixed Asset
Inventory
Work-In-Progress

TOTAL ACQUISITION OF ASSET

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN FINANCIAL ASSETS
Purchase/Granting of Financial assets
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances

TOTAL ACQUISITION FINANCIAL ASSETS

. CASH RECEIPTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Taxes
Other Revenue
Other Receipts

TOTAL RECEIPTS

Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity
A 1 ■ rAdvances

TOTAL SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(45.42)
0.00
0.00

(45.42)

978.11
108.43

57.25
1443.79

(14.98)
(136.07)

(0.00)
(0.00)

(「8.16)
(941.58)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.47

(0.47)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00 

(20.92) 
(20.92)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE 
---------- —< CCVC



1981

total sale/recovery of financial assets

NET CASHFLOW FROM INVESTMENT IN FIANANCIAL ASSETS 20.45

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

(57.97)NET CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

78.36(A+B+C+D)NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH

| (436.86)|CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING

| (358.50)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT CLOSE

STATEMENT of cash flow for the 
MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2012

Domestic Liability
Inflows
Outflows

NET INCURRENCE OF DOMESTIC LIABILITY

Foreign Liability
Inflow-
Outflow

NET INCURRENCE OF FOREIGN LIABILITY

2012 
GHC 

MILLIONS
(W)

823.52
837.12
(13.60)

0.00
(44.37)
44.37
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

5 Prepayments 27,366,855

11,544,658 
0 
0

11,544,658

0 
10,011 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

10,011

786,284,715
900,832,056

4,783,840
4,983,761

1,696,884,372

617,898,278
625,246,647

8,482,555
921,980

247,334,236
(4,044,733)

1,495,838,963

General 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions
Total

2012 
GHC

4 Inventories
Printed Materials and Stationery
Office Facilities, Supplies and Accessories
Electrical Accessories
Oils and Lubricants
Spare Parts
Specialised Stock
Refreshment Items
Drugs
Medical Supplies
Total

(1,008,620,056)
(45,531,359) 

702,725
17,176,513 

2,727,750,812 
130,000 

(2,009,839,554)
(318,230,920)

3 Receivables
Advances
Foreign Missions Remittances & Advances
Other Receivables
Total

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Treasury Main Account 
MDASub-CF Accounts 
Regional Sub-CF Accounts 
MMDASub-CF Accounts 
Tax Revenue Accounts 
NTR Revenue Accounts 
Special Accounts 
Total

7 Equity Investment
Public Boards & Corporations
Companies
Trust Funds
International Agencies
Total

6 Receivables
Statutory Boards & Corporations 
Companies
Foreign Governments / Agencies



1983

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

9 Land

0

(5,07X357)12 Payables

(4,417^50,105)13 Short-Term Borrowing

(949,135^28)
14 Trust Monies

也036,284.774
15 External Borrowing

6,998,982,149
16 Domestic Borrowing

・：

2012 
GHc

954266
232^28

24,702
1,893,752

876,812
3,979,759

115>2720

287,604322
0

447,782454

644,811
5,613,931

39,932,420 
159,995 

12,059593 
0

58,410,750

10 Work - In - Progress
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport Equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Total

286240,958
220.756,710
21329,425

530327.093

8 Infrastructure,Pant and Equipment
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Total

18 INDIRECT TAX
General Taxes on Goods and Services
Excises
Customs and Other Import Duties
Taxes on Exports
Total

Payable by Corporations and Other Enterprises 

Unallocatable
Total

11 Intangible Assets 
Computer Software

17 DIRECT TAX
Payable by Individuals



2012

1984

notes to the accounts

Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables)

25

40,264,596 
0 
0

40,264,596

857,986,938 
55,174,481 
20,704,456 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

823,516,913

98,366,158 
7,046,309 
487,370 

0 
2,531,052 

108,430,888

10,898,325
0

29,639,734
40,538,059

137,873
275,746

16,297,515
16,711,134

.0 
0 
0 

471,299 
471,299

21 NHIL
SSNIT
DOMESTIC
IMPORT
Total

2012 
GHC

23 LOANS RECEIVED
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables

Export Credit Institutions
Total

22 LEVIES
Petroleum Levy - Energy Fund 
Petroleum Levy - Exploration 
Petroleum Levy - Road Fund 
Total

20 OTHER REVENUE
Property income
Sales of goods and services
Fines, penalties, and forfeits
Voluntary transfers other than grants 
Miscellaneous and unidentified revenue
Total

A 'IAdvances
Total
COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions

19 GRANT
From foreign governments
From international organizations
From other general government units
Total

24 RECOVERIES
Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity
A J-



1985

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3

41,490,747 
0 

3,930,294 
0 

45,421,040

117,980,226 
25,571,085 

1,163,043 
0 
0 
0 

144,714,353

13,398,735
122,673,176

136,071,911

National Pension Contribution
13% SSF Contribution
Gratuity
Pension
End of Service Benefit (ESB)
Rounding
Superannuation
Total

2,102,217 
110,055 

19,061 
46,703 

3,020,695 
658,620 

1,033,850 
7,355,189 

23,527 
607,203 

0
14,977,122

Established Position 
Non Established Post 
Allowances
National Pension Contribution
Total

2012
GHc

627,234,290 
0 

416,447 
144,714,353 

772,365,090

27 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed asset
Inventories
Work In Progress 
Finished Goods
Total

0 
0 

1,896 
1,896

28 INTEREST
Non Residents
Residents
Total

29 SOCIAL BENEFITS
Social security benefits in cash

7

g 
l-\ 誓

I J

■ J <5皇
i §

% 、

■X

Social assistance benefits in cash 
Employer social benefits in cash
Total

26 GOODS AND SERVICES
Materials and Office Consumables
Utilities
General Cleaning
Rentals
Travel and Transport
Repairs and Maintenance
Training, Seminar and Conference Cost
Consultancy Expenses
Special Services
Other Charges and Fees
Emergency Services
Total
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GHANA

1986

notes to the accounts

OTHER EXPENSES

LOAN REPAYMENTS
Short Term Borrowings /Payables
Medium Tenn Borrowings/ Payables

2012 

672,058,029 
81,034,230 
84,023,075 

0 
13,071,793 

9,920,833 
9,202,765 

0 
12,178,839

881,489,565

20,919,733 
19,962,000 
(1,799,484) •

39,083,222

32 OTHER PAYMENTS
Advance
Trust Monies 
Accounts Payable 
Total

Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions
Export Credit Institutions
Total

2012 
GHC 

4,066
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-GeneraKs Department

v f Local Governmental

ARIC 
BMS 
BoG 
CAG 
CAGD 
CF 
COA 
CoFoG 
CoE 
DACF 
DIC 
DMD 
EOCO 
FAA 
FAR 
FWSC 
GCB 
GCNet 
GES 
GFS 
GHS 
GIFMIS 
GoG 
GRA 
HIPC 
HRMS 
I AAA 
ICT 
IGF 
IPPD 
MDA 
MDBS 
MDRI 
MEST 
MESW 
MFA 
MINT 
mlgrd

J 3

Human Resource Management System
Internal Audit Agency a._ 
Information Technology 
Internally Generated Funds 
Integrated Perse— 
Ministries, Departmen

ACRONYMS
Audit Report Implement；
Budget Management System
Bank of Ghana
Controller and Accountant - General
Controller and Accountant
Consolidated Fund
Chart of Accounts
Classification of Functions of Government
Compensation of Employees
Districts Assemblies Common Fund
Diversiture Implementation Committee
Debts Management Division
Economic and Organised Crime Office
Financial Administration Act, 2003 (Act 654) • - .
Financial Administration Regulations, 2004 [L! 1802)
Fair Wages and Salaries Commission
Ghana Commercial Bank
Ghana Community Network
Ghana Education Service
Government Finance Statistics
Ghana Health Service 、
Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System

Government of Ghana
Ghana Revenue Authority
Highly Indebted Poor Country

Act 2003 (Act 658)

:ation Committee

and Technology
of Environment Science

Ministry of Employment and Suciai ,,— 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Regional Integration

Ministry of Interior Ministry of Local Government and Rural Development

onnel and Payroll Database 
...... ......... . ''its and Agencies 
Multi-Donor Budgetary Support 
Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative 
Ministry or ---- "'

」*nd Social Welfare
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1?89

on Committee

1

Rural Development

,

ARIC 
BMS 
BoG 
CAG 
CAGD 
CF 
COA 
CoFoG 
CoE 
DACF 
DIC 
DMD 
EOCO 
FAA 
FAR 
FWSC 
GCB 
GCNet 
GES 
GFS 
GHS 
GIFMIS 
GoG 
GRA 
HIPC 
HRMS 
I AAA 
ICT 
IGF 
IPPD 
MDA 
MDBS 
MDRI 
MEST 
MJ) 
m/

acronyms
Audit Report Implementation Committee 
Budget Management System
Bank of Ghana
Controller and Accountant - General
Controller and Accountant - Generafs Department 
八 Y • ■ •—

Internally Generated Funds 
Integrated Personnel 
Ministries,

Consolidated Fund 1 "……
Chart of Accounts
Classification of Functions of Government 
Compensation of Employees 
Districts Assemblies Common Fund 
Diversiture Implementation Committee 
Debts Management Division 
Economic and Organised Crime Office 
Financial Administration Act, 2003 (Act 654) • • •・
Financial Administration Regulations, 2004 (LI 1802) 
Fair Wages and Salaries Commission 
Ghana Commercial Bank 
Ghana Community Network 
Ghana Education Service 
Government Finance Statistics 
Ghana Health Service
Ghana Integrated Financial Management Infornution System 
Government of Ghana 
Ghana Revenue Authority
Highly Indebted Poor Country

Act 2003 (Act 6S$)

Multilateral Debt R&& m

Human Resource Management System 
Internal Audit Agency 
Information Technology'

Ministries, Depam二金武
MuIti-DonorBudge^^-

f Environment, Sciexe anl TNh* 加渗
' Syrng m3 Serial VCelfare

and Regional IntcgvMiou
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1990

acronyms

Ministry
Metropc

MLNR 
MMDA 
MoC 
MoCC 
MoD 
MoE 
MoEN 
MoFA 
MoFEP 
MoH 
MOI 
MoJAD 
MoRH 
MoT 
MOTI 
MoWAC 
MoYS • 
MWRWH 
NITA 
NHIL 
NPT 
OMCs 
PDI 
PIA 
PPA 
PFM 
PUFMARP 
SSNIT 
SSPP 
SIP 
TSA

「of Lands and Natural Resources
.olitan, Municipal and District Assembly

Ministry of Communication
Ministry of Chieftaincy and Culture
Ministry of Defence
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Energy 、
Ministry of Food and Agriculture
Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
Ministry of Health
Ministry of Information
Ministry ofjustice and Attorney-General's Department
Ministry of Road and Highways
Ministry of Transport
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Ministry ofWomen and Children Affairs
Ministry ofYouth and Sports
Ministry of Water Resources, Works and Housing
National Information Technology Agency
National Health Insurance Levy
Non Project Type
Oil Marketing Companies
Public Debt and Investment
Project Implementation Agencies
Public Procurement Act 2003, (Act 663)
Public Financial Management
Public Financial Management Reforms Programme

3

Social Security and National Insurance Trust
Single Spine Pay Policy
Social Investment Programme
Treasury Single Account



也妙A GAZETTE. 3i

1991

FUND

AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL ON THE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Included in this report is the Summary of Expenditure by Items and Heads

f
2.0

retained Internally Generated

3.0

The Controller and Accountant-General is 】「：-二' 
Financial Administration Act (FAA), 2003 Act 654 and LOJ 
Financial Administration Regulations (FAR), 2004, LI 1802

of Ghana by the 15th day of the following month.

The financial statements comprise:

April.
2012

report of the controller 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

■ A Balance Sheet
■ A Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
■ A Statement of Receipts and Payments
■ A Cash Flow Statement
■ Notes to the Accounts

Statistics, 
a 

•: to improve 
This

PUBLIC.ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

In compliance with Articles 175 and 176 
Ghana, these financial statements known as 
prepared on the Consolidated Fun( . 
established by or i--------
Funds.

THE SCOPE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

of the Constitution of the Republic of 
j the Public Accounts of Ghana are 

—id only. They do not include other public funds 
under Acts of Parliament and retained Internally Generated

ADOPTION OF GFS & CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF 职二响 

The government adopted as an economic ；普告置押为双 ^manual 

da^rdforthe compMti 吧嚣‘源麟扯 」

Suited in the 祝二

一 ■ [ economic a
Monetary Fund's Government Finance 
represents a stan-----
is part of a world wide effort^ 
transparency in its operations..

:accounting 
classification of the

2001 Manual. This manual 
「ndpresenta 皿。俱巷:苦 d

required by Section 40 of the 
-------- 1 Regulation 188 of the 

』. 】 .----------- to prepare and
transmit to the Auditor-General and the Minister of Finance and Economic 
Planning [MoFEP] the Public Accounts on the Consolidated Fund of the Republic



2012 

4.0 Ghana

In February 2012, the GIFMIS to CAGD and

position that

5.0

payroll are to be

1992 ------------- ---------------------------------

public accounts on the consolidated fund

GHANA GAZETTE.jRPOCTOBg^

CAGD is carrying out an exercise to re-classify the 2011 transactions to fall in line 
with the 2012 classifications. This exercise will be completed by the end of 2012.

噩噂E郭愕F due
——1 position that 

Chart of Accounts, these accounts could not be presented

GPS classification and adopting the United Nations Classifications of 
Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been structured to cater for 
budgeting and reporting under Programme Based Budgeting (PBB). This

Subsequently, the comparative figures for 2011 are not available now since the 
financial statements have been prepared based on the new classification.

} l~Personnel Emoluments 2-Administration, 3-Service 
1-Compensation of Employees, 2-Use of Goods &

April.
2012

Integrated Financial Management Information System 
(GIFMIS)

:new 
CoA°wa. used for the^preparation of the 2012 budget and its subsequent 
implementation. ,

budget preparation and execution, recording, accounting and reporting. It is the 

loaded into GIFMIS and th

on government \ “ 
with effect from January i, 2010. As and

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system to e for 
budget preparation and execution, recording, accounting and reporting. It is the 
government s official system and runs on Oracle software. The 2012 budget was 
loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts were prepared using the GIFMIS.

普?e accounts have delayed because of the deployment of the GIFMIS general 
ivuger.

Compensation of Employees

of arrears. 喷 are approved, payments were effected without the payment

general ledger was handed over
-to issues involving budgeting 
we could redefine the 2011and inPuting errors and the initial 

sccounts with the new「 
on time.

Expenditure Classes from 
碧盖懿盟焉Mfhxed capital, 4-Interest, 5-Subsidies, 6-Grants, 

7-Social Benefits and 8-other Expense.

A new CoA has been developed on these bases using the International Monetary 
Fund's(
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

6.0 SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

The summary of Receipts and Payments for the month of April is as follows:

Receipts (812.04)2,710.771,898.73

(258.25)(781.29)(523.04)

7.0
deficit ofafor theand Expenditure

755.76
1,038.11REVENUE 1,317.67
1,148.47EXPENDITURE

(561.71)
(110.36)SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

GH^M
553.79

April 2012 
BUDGET

April 2012 
ACTUAL

VARIANCE 
GHCM

(282.35)

(169.20)

(451.35)

April.
2012

SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

month resulted in

GHCM
1,375.69

GHCM
1,929.48

April 2012 
VARIANCE

April 2012 
ACTUAL

GHCM

During 2011, government approved a 20% increase of salaries for all public 
Sm学:/脸 Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 2011.

J as January 1, 

therefore the payment of arrears in 2012 will not reflect the actual 2012 
expenditure.

Payments
Net Receipts/ Payments

… …increase of salaries for all public
officers on the Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 2011. 
Another increase of 18% was approved for all with effective date as January 1, 
2012. The payments of salaries have always been accounted for on cash basis and

一 . 一

The Revenue
GH(t561.71million as follows:

April 2012 
BUDGET 

GH«M
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additional statistics8.0

REVENUE8.1

8.1.1 Direct Tax
Direct tax amounted to GHt348.92miIlion as against the expected amount of

of GH(tl7.38million, giving rise to an unfavourable variance of GH(t7.85million.

variance

against the budgeted figureGH(t639.90million. Actual expenditure

resulting jn of
figure of GHC233.99 
GHC213.68million.

April.
2012

8.1.4 Other Revenue
Non-Tax Revenue for the month was GHC9.53million as against a budgeted figure

GHC169.00million.

8.2.1 r —.
Compensation of Employee： 
"J-  budgeted. This

8.1.3 Grants
Grants received during the month was GH(t33.21million as against the budgeted 
figure of GHC96.33 million. This resulted in adverse variance of GHC63.13

was GH<rl,036.08million against 
gives an unfavourable variance of

GHc20.31millioii against the budgeted
〜 1 a favourable variance 」

Compensation of Employees
"一「for the month 

GHc508.56million '- 
GHc527.52million.

■> ■ ■ ■ — -- ------- ----

GH«471.35 million, indicating an adverse variance of GH(tl22.43million.

8?1.2 Indirect Tax
Indirect tax was GHC364.11million against
GHC453.04million. This resulted in an 
million.

8.2 EXPENDITURE
Expenditure is made up of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and 
Services, Consumption of Fixed Capital, Interest Subsidies, Grants, Social Benefits, 
Other Expenses. The total for the month amounted to 6^1,317,47 million as 

人粉醉 of GH(tl,148.47miIlion, resulting in a favourable variance of

a budget amount of 
unfavourable variance of GHC88.93

8.2.2 Goods and Services f
Goods and Services paid was GHt281.38million against the budgeted figure 0 
GHC639.90milIion. Actual expenditure was therefore GH(t358.52million l°we 
than budgeted, indicating a favourable variance.

8.2.3 Non Financial Assets
Non Financial Assets for the month was

million

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

UP of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and

Other Expenses. The total for the month
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1995
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

8.2.4 PUBLIC DEBT

Debt repayment is made up as follows：

9.0 APPROPRIATION

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

UTILISED APPRORIATION AS APRIL

UNUTILISED APPROPRIATION

10.0 CONCLUSION

the Consolidated Fund for the month of April, 2012 are hereby presented.

Ox?

■

In compliance therefore with Section 
Regulation 188 of the FAR, 2004 ( 
on 1

Domestic Debt
External Debt

April.
2012

GHC 
million 
1,294.18 

29.55

RAPHAEl\^ASI TUFUOft
CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

I wish to take this opportunity to thank all the staff of CAGD and other public 
officers for the immense contributions towards the preparation of the Report and 
the Public Accounts of the Consolidated Fund.

-t 40 of the FAA, 2003 (Act 654) and 
(LI 1802), the Report and the Public Accounts

GHC 

MILLION 

19,935.77 

5,470.35 

14,465.42



1996

2012

NOTES

348,915,413471,348,86117
364,111,008453,041,18118INDIRECT TAX

33,207,87896,334,953GRANTS
9,529,35417,382,50020OTHER REVENUE

25,957,30856,845,33921NHIL
16,626,37722LEVIES

1,130,703,367280,735,821 849,967,54623LOANS RECEIVED

431,579 431,57924RECOVERIES

1,929,482,284 553,793,6301,375,688,654TOTAL RECEIPTS

25 508,562,882 1,036,084,953

26

INTEREST 28 114,859,962 261,378,756
SOCIAL BENEFITS 29 24,658,688 2,105
OTHER EXPENSES 30 567,862,826 1,378,621

1,323,733,683
32

][

NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH (781,286,79另|

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING
(318,230,92刨

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT END
(1,099,517,7  诃

182,397,472

1,898725,857
49,254,818 

2710,769,0切

GOODS AND SERVICES
N0N-FINANC1AL ASSETS

annual 
budget 

GHC

266,393,105
233,990,922

18,624,473
20,311,674

RECEIPTS
DIRECT TAX

PAYMENTS
COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

LOAN REPAYMENTS

OTHER PAYMENTS

TOTAL PAYMENTS

ACTUAL 
GHC

(527,522,071)

247,768,631
2 1 3,679,249

(146,518,794),

24,656,584

566,484,204

(1,323,733,683)

133,142,654

但12七043。11

VARAINCE
GHc

(122,433,448)

(88,930,172)

(63,127,075)

(7,853,146) i

(30,888,031)

16,626,377

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS 
MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2012



2012
1997

STATEMENT of revenue and expenditure
MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2012

CURRENT PREVIOUS
NOTES GHC GHC

REVENUE

direct tax 17 348,915,412.60 288,316,335.37

INDIRECT TAX 18 364,111,008.18 236,224,501.59

GRANTS 19 33,207,877.58 29,649,050.08

OTHER REVENUE 20 9,529,354.29 25,293,100.00

755,763,652.65 579,482,987.04TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

396,020,891.381,036,084,953.3225COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

285,013,106.5218,624,473.1126USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES
0.000.00CONSUMPTION OF FIXED CAPITAL
0.00261,378,755.9828INTEREST
0.002,104.7029SOCIAL BENEFITS

251,674,803.051,378,621.2030OTHER EXPENSES

800.951.317,468,908.31
total expenditure

353/25,813.91)255.66；
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

F



§
1998

ICE SHEET AS AT APRIL 30 2012
^irrBALANCE

ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 2,215,960,751

18,375,526,268

TOTAL LIABILITIES 18.375,526,商]24,208,546,731 | [

NET ASSETS (15,504,308口2 回(21,992,585,980)1 [

(15,196,069,6 攻1

RAPHAEL K SITUFUOR

6
7
8
9

10
11

12
13
14

2,871,218,远T

15
16 

2
3
4
5

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
External
Domestic

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT 
GHC

PREVIOUS
GHC 

2,871,218,144

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables
Short-term borrowings
Trust Monies

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

CONTRIBUTED BY
Surpluses / (Deficits) 
Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits) 
z WWW ft rx* f *•*—-

CURRENT ASSETS
Cashand Cash Equivalents

Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments

TOTAL CURRENT ASSET

1,495,838,963
1,696,884,372

80,556,988 
0 

5,338,854 
0 

3,278,619,178

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Equity Investments
Infrastructure, plant and Equipment
Land
Work In-Progress
Intangible Assets .

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSET

NETWORTH [

RAPHAEL KW/ISI TUFUOR/

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

一 ，M a

12,006,730,798
6,931,100,392 

i&937,831,190

3,841,107
4,321,655,521
945,218,913

5,270,715,541

(1,102,674,439) 
11,113,079 

10,011 
28,892,922

(1,062,658,427,

(504,746,906) (353,225,814)
(21,487,839,074) (15,196,0^2竺%
(21,992,585,980)1 [ (i；549,2丝竺U
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1999

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE
MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2012

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH RECEIPTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH PAYMENT FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(600.06)ANET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

0

(20.31)B
NET CASHFLOW FROM

total acquisition financial assets

0.00
0.00
0.00 心 

(1.53)

Taxes
Other Revenue
Other Receipts

TOTAL RECEIPTS

CURRENT 
GHC 

MILLION

Compensation Of Employees
Goods And Services
Interest
Other Expenses
Social Benefits
Other Payments

TOTAL PAYMENTS

Purchase/Granting Of Nonfinancial Assets 
Fixed Asset
Inventory
Work-In-Progress

total acquisition of asset

TOTAL SALE OF NON-CURRENT ASSET 
investment IN NON CURRENT ASSETS

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

Purchase/Granting of Financial assets
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances

713.03
9.53

42.58
765.14

0.00
(20.31)

0.00
0.00

(2031)

(1,036.08)
(18.62)

(261.38)
(1.38)
(0.00)

(*7.73)
(1,365.20)
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2002

TO THE ACCOUNTSNOTES

8

09 Land

0

12 Payables 3,841,107

13 Short-Term Borrowing 4,321,655,521

14 Trust Monies 945,218,913

15 External Borrowing 12,006,730,798

16 Domestic Borrowing 6,931,100,392

11 Intangible Assets
Computer Software

Unallocatable
Total

219,511,272
36,916,952
92,487,189

348,915,413

97,492,080
42,595,951 

224,022,978 
0

364,111,008

801,458 
20,088,699 
45,957,194

427,257
13,146,866 

0
80,421,475

2012 
GHC

2,285,490
232,228

24,702
1,893,752

902,683
5,338,854

10 Work-In-Progress
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport Equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Total

Infrastructure,Pantand Equipment
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Total

17 DIRECT TAX
Payable by Individuals
Payable by Corporations and Other Enterprises

18 INDIRECT TAX
General Taxes on Goods and Services 
Excises
Customs and Other Import Duties
Taxes on Exports
Total



33,207,878
0 
0 

33,207,878

0 
、0 

25,957,308 
25,957,308

25,957,308
136,912
273,824

16,215,641
42,583,685

230,000
6,296,811

193,777 
0 

2,808,766 
9,529,354

0 
0 
0 

431,579 
431,579

21 NHIL
SSNIT
DOMESTIC
IMPORT
Total

2012
GHc

1,056,497,092 
24,860,404 
49,345,871 

、 0
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1,130,703,367

20 OTHER REVENUE
Property income
Sales of goods and services
Fines, penalties, and forfeits
Voluntary transfers other than grants 
Miscellaneous and unidentified revenue
Total

24 RECOVERIES
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances
Total

19 GRANT
From foreign governments
From international organizations
From other general government units
Total

22 LEVIES
Import NHIL
Petroleum Levy - Energy Fund
Petroleum Levy - Exploration
Petroleum Levy - Road Fund
Total

23 LOANS RECEIVED
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions 
Export Credit Institutions
Total

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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2004

NOTES to the accounts

25

0
0

179,988,558
26 GOODSAND SERVICES

18,624,473

20,311,674

1,359,095
0

854,800,411
0

18,952,578
0

1,295,984
179,988,558

1,036,084,953

131,534,406
17,660,045
30,794,107

0

1,727,082
587,636
26,064

529,019
2,695,282
702,044

6,256,705
4,798,859
237,520

1,064,261
0

2012
GH(t

Materials and Office Consumables
Utilities

Gratuity
Pension
End of Service Benefit (ESB)
Rounding
Superannuation
Total

General Cleaning
Rentals

Allowances

National Pension Contribution

Total

National Pension Contribution
13% SSF Contribution

27 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed asset
Inventories
Work In Progress
Finished Goods
Total

Travel and Transport
Repairs and Maintenance
Training, Seminar and Conference Cost
Consultancy Expenses
Special Services
Other Charges and Fees
Emergency Services
Total

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

Established Position 
Non Established Post
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Total

30 OTHER EXPENSES 1,378,621j

0
1,323,733,683

32 OTHER PAYMENTS

2012
GHC

Advances
Trust Monies

1,093,561,328

83,390,752

117,227,628

0

69,046,454

192,332,302

261,378,756

l；526,067 
46,500,000 

1,228,750 
49,254,818

17,830,105
5,894,495
5,829,376

0

0
1,947

157
2,105

28 INTEREST
Non Residents
Residents

29 SOCIAL BENEFITS
Social security benefits in cash
Social assistance benefits in cash
Employer social benefits in cash
Total

31 LOAN REPAYMENTS
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions 
Export Credit Institutions

Total

Accounts Payable
Total
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2008

ent and Rural Development

Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative
Ministry of Envirr 一
Ministry of Employment and Social Welfare

ARIC 
BMS 
BoG 
CAG 
CAGD 
CF 
COA 
CoFoG 
CoE 
DACF 
DIG 
DMD 
EOCO 
FAA 
FAR 
FWSC 
GCB 
GCNet 
GES 
GFS 
GHS 
GIFMIS 
GoG 
GRA 
HIPC 
HRMS 
IAAA 
ICT 
IGF 
IPPD 
MDA 
MDBS 
MDRI 
MEST 
MESW 
MFA 
MINT
MLGRD

acronyms
Audit Report Implementation Committee
Budget Management System

~ Bank of Ghana
Controller and Accountant - General
Controller and Accountant . Generafs Department
Consolidated Fund
Chart of Accounts
Classification of Functions of Government
Compensation of Employees
Districts Assemblies Common Fund
Diversiture Implementation Committee
Debts Management Division
Economic and Organised Crime Office
Financial Administration Act, 2003 (Act 654)
Financial Administration Regulations, 2004 (LI 1802)
Fair Wages and Salaries Commission
Ghana Commercial Bank
Ghana Community Network
Ghana Education Service
Government Finance Statistics
Ghana Health Service
Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
Government of Ghana
Ghana Revenue Authority
Highly Indebted Poor Country
Human Resource Management System
Internal Audit Agency Act 2003 (Act 658)
Information Technology
Internally Generated Funds
Integrated Personnel and Payroll Database
Ministries, Departments and Agencies
Multi-Donor Budgetary Support 

------- jive

onment； Science and Technology
 , , >

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Regional Integration
Ministry of Interior
Ministry of Local Governm



 2009

Social Investment Programme 
Treasury Single Account

* us ■ ■ ~  rent Reforms Programme
Social Security and National Insurance Trust 

Single Spine Pay Policy

ACRONYMS
Ministry of Lands and N; - *7  
Metropolitan, Municipal and District As

atural Resources
.sembly

---------------

Ministry of Communication
Ministry of Chieftaincy and Culture
Ministry of Defence
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Energy
Ministry of Food and Agriculture
Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
Ministry of Health
Ministry of Information
Ministry of Justice and Attorney-General's Department
Ministry of Road and Highways
Ministry of Transport
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Ministry of Women and Children Affairs
Ministry of Youth and Sports

National Information Technology Agency 
National Health Insurance Levy 
Non Project Type 
Oil Marketing Companies 
Public Debt and Investment 
Project Implementation Agencies 
Public Procurement Act 2003, (Act 663) 
Public Financial Management

PUFMARP Public Financial Managemc——
SSNIT
SSPP
SIP
TSA

MLNR 
MMDA 
MoC 
MoCC 
MoD 
MoE 
MoEN 
MoFA 
MoFEP 
MoH 
MOI 
MoJAD 
MoRH 
MoT 
MOTI 
MoWAC 
MoYS 
MWRWH Ministry of Water Resources, Works and Housing
NITA 
NHIL 
NPT 
OMCs 
PDI 
PIA 
PPA 
PFM
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2010

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL ON THE

INTRODUCTION1.0

The

Included in this report is the Summary of Expenditure by Items and Heads

2.0

3.0

transparency in its

REPORT OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

prepared on「 
established by 
Funds.

THE SCOPE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Incompliance with Articles 175 and 176 of the Constitution of the Republic of 

statements known as the Public Accounts of Ghana are

May.
2012

■ A Balance Sheet
■ A Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
■ A Statement of Receipts and Payments
■ A Cash Flow Statement
■ Notes to the Accounts

The Controller and Accountant-General is required by Section 40 of the 
Financial Administration Act (FAA), 2003 Act 654 and Regulation 188 of the 
Financial Administration Regulations (FAR), 2004, LI 1802 to prepare and 
transmit to the Auditor-General and the Minister of Finance and Economic 
Planning (MoFEP) the Public Accounts on the Consolidated Fund of the Republic 
of Ghana by the 15th day of the following month.

The financial statements comprise:

Ghana, these financial r - *
theConsolidated Fund only. They do not include other public funds

Under Acts of Parliament and retained Internally Generated

ADOPTION OFGFS & CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE COA

5盟篇嚣^^Pted as an economic and accounting policy the International 
鬻忠Z 擀也ent Finance Statistics, 2001 Manual. This man吧

is part of a w：二： e compilation and presentation of fiscal statistics an 
^aXencv Ji wide effort to improve government accounting and 
嚣鬻斜f 藉瞟；This resulted in the reclassification of the 
cxpenaimre Classes from LPe””顽口匚….…. -s

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

to improve government accounting

1-Personnel Emoluments 2-Administration, 3-Service



■2HANA GAZEUq0 2011

FUND

of Goods &

1

4.0

5.0

In line with

CAGD is carrying out an exercise to re-classify the 2011 transactions to fall in line 
with the 2012 classifications. This exercise will be completed by the end of2012.

of Employees, 2-Use
f 5-Subsidies, 6-Grants,

and 4-Investment to 1-Compensation L：二…〜 
Services, 3-Consumption of fixed capital* 4^Inte^est

Subsequently, the comparative figures for 2011 are not available now since the 
financial statements have been prepared based on the new classification.

May.
2012

3 *
Of

Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
(GIFMIS)

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system to e for 
- 七. It is the

n Oracle software. The 2012 budget was 
prepared using the GIFMIS.

of the GIFMIS generalThese accounts have delayed because of the deployment 
ledger.

In February 2012, the GIFMIS general ledger
•*" * * a w* a a a a * wa ------------ . .

and inputing errors and the initial position - 
accounts with the new I----
on time.

7-Social Benefits and 8-other Expense.

LlW

budget preparation and execution； recording, accounting and reporting. It is the 
governments official system and runs oh — 
loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts were

on government pa况 1蓊吐； 

gf慕履讪如the payment

坤2扁。

MPCTOBE^JOI?

PUBLIC accounts on the consolidated

In February 2012, the G™S due to issues involving budgeting
implementation bega吁％您器 nosition^that we could redefine the 2011 

慕;tof Accounts, these accounts could not be presented

Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been structured to cater for 
budgeting and reporting under Programme Based Budgeting (PBB). This new 
CoA was used for the preparation of the 2012 budget and its subsequent

Compensation of Employees

一,….，governs心嚣臆3"顷赠

of arrears.

these bases using the International Monetai

Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been — “ 
budgeting and reporting under Programme Based Budgeting~(PBBy This n^r

implementation.
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「r2012

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

During 2011, government approved a 20% increase of salaries for all public

6.0 SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

The summaiy of Receipts and Payments for the month of May is as follows:

Receipts
1,898.73 1,365.85 532.88

(523.04) 1,638.95 2,161,99

7.0 SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

The Revenue and Expenditure for the month resulted in a deficit ofGH(t7.03million as follows:

REVENUE 1,038.11 1,070.61 32.50
EXPENDITURE 1448.47 1077.64 70.83
SURPLUS/fDEFICIT) (110.36) (7.03) 117.39

GH^M
1,629.11

VARIANCE 
GHctM

May 2012 
VARIANCE

Payments
Net Receipts/ Payments

therefore the payment of arrears in 2012 will not reflect the actual 2012 
expenditure.

May 2012 
BUDGET 

GHctM

May 2012 
BUDGET

GHCM
1,375.69

GHCM 
3,004.80

May 2012 
ACTUAL

May 2012 
” ACTUAL 

GHCM

May.
2012

officers on the Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 2011. 
Another increase of 18% was approved for all with effective date as January 1, 
2012. The payments of salaries have always been accounted for on cash basis and



n 2013

FUND

8.0 ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

REVENUE8.1

against the expected amount of

against a budget amount of

to a favourable variance of

of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and

variance of

lowerGHC433.66million

than budgeted, indicating a favourable

823 Non Financial Assets offavourable

8.2.1 Compensation of Employees 
J f-- 

budgeted. This gives

figure of GHC233.99
GH<t200.92million

Compensation of Employees
GH(f508.56million 1 -
GH(t362.84million.

the budgeted 
variance

8.1.1 Direct Tax
Direct tax amounted to GH(t460.09millionas 七_：._ …〜 
GHC471.35 million, indicating an adverse variance of GHC11.26million.

for the month was 
an i

8.2 EXPENDITURE
Expenditure is made up

i was 
resulting

May. 
2012

8.1.4 Other Revenue
Non-Tax Revenue for the month was GHC141.89million as against a budgeted
figure of GHC17.38million, giving rise
GH(T124.51million. 一

8.1.2 Indirect Tax
Indirect tax was GH(t468.62milIion ' 
GHC453.04million. This resulted in a favourable variance of GHC15.58 million.

8.1.3 Grants
There was no grant during the month as against the budgeted figure of GHC96.33 
million.

8-2.2 Goods and Services
Goods and Services paid was

;GHC871.40million against 
unfavourable '-----

;ainst the budgeted figure of 
therefore

variance.

Non Financial Assets for the month 
million r

GH(t33.07million against 
in a favourable

Services, Consumption of Fixed Capital, Interest Subsidies, Grants, Social Benefits, 
Other Expenses. The total for the month amounted to GH(tl；077.64 million as 

厂 一 •… …一，— favourable variance oi

一-------------- A GH(t206.24million ag;
H<t639.90million. Actual expenditure was 匚…"

. .一 s ----------------------------------•

Other Expenses. The total for the month amounted to GH(tL077.64 million as 
against the budget of GH(tl,148.47million, resulting in a L-------
GH(t70.83million.

______________ GHANA GAZETTE, 3rd OCTOBER, 2012

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED



2012

2014

the consolidated fund
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON

PUBLIC DEBT8.2

APPROPRIATION9

UNUTILISED APPROPRIATION

CONCLUSION

RAPHAEDKWASITUFU0R

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

UTILISED APPRORIATION AS MAY

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

May.
2012

There was no

External Debt payment amounted to GHC26.39miIlion.

GHC 
MILLION 
19,935.77

6,836.20
13,099.56

In compliance therefore'with Section 40 of the FAA, 2003 (Act 654) and 
Regulation 188 of the FAR, 2004 (LI 1802), the Report and the Public Accounts 
on the Consolidated Fund for the month of May, 2012 are hereby presented.

10
I wish to take this opportunity to thank all the staff of CAGD and other public 
officers for the immense contributions towards the preparation of the Report and 
the Public Accounts of the Consolidated Fund.

Debt repayment is made up as follows:

Domestic Debt repaid for the period.
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2015

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS
FOR THE MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2012

NOTE： BUDGET ACTUAL VARAINCE
GHC GHc GHCRECEIPTS

DIRECT TAX 17 471,348,861 460,093,963 (11,254,898)
INDIRECT TAX 18 453,041,181 468,622,534 15,581,353
GRANTS 19 96,334,953 0 (96,334,953)
OTHER REVENUE 20 17,382,500 141,893,466 124,510,966

!NHIL 21 56,845,339 47,971,915 (8,873,424)

LEVIES 0 17,221,451 17,221,451

LOANS RECEIVED 23 280,735,821 1,868,499,769 1,587,763,948

RECOVERIES 24 498,5730

3,004,801,671..1,375,688,654TOTAL RECEIPTS

PAYMENTS
(362,836,356)871,399,238508,562,882COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 25
211,441,36554,951,739266,393,10526USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES
200,918,10933,072,813233,990,922NON-FINANCIALASSETS
(36,074,937)150,934,899114,859,96228INTEREST
24,481,458177,23124,658,68829SOCIAL BENEFITS

567,682,655180,171567,862,82630OTHER EXPENSES
36,391,098031LOAN REPAYMENTS 218,745,287182,397,47232OTHER PAYMENTS 21,434,230,5871,365,852,47622,800,083,063

TOTAL PAYMENTS
'638,949,195」

NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING
756

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT END

(36,391,098)
(36,347,815)

498,573
(3,004,801,6见
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2016

statement of revenue and expenditure
MAY 31,2012for the month ended

NOTES

REVENUE

460,093,963 278,880,48717DIRECT TAX

468,622,534 328,646,31318INDIRECT TAX

0 11,62019GRANTS

141,893,466 一 &820,489OTHER REVENUE 20

1,070,609,963 616,358,909TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 25 871,399,238 395,568,884
USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES 26 54,951,739 251,061,877

CONSUMPTION OF FIXED CAPITAL 0

INTEREST 28 150,934,899

SOCIAL BENEFITS 29 177,231

OTHER EXPENSES 30 145,666,950180,171

total expenditure
1,077,643,278 || 792,297,711

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0,033,315) || (175,938,80。］

2,012
GHC

2,011
GHC



R 0
2017

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MAY 31,2012

NOTES

][ 2,504,971,2363,887,514,400TOTAL ASSETS

18,159,684,424LIABILITIES

18,159,684,424
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

律2,048,463,457)| [

RAPHAEL K1

CONTROLLER

6
7
8
9
10
11

15
16

12
13
14

2
3
4
5

1,495,838,963 
1,696,884,372 

111,480,470 
0 

7,488,185 
0 

3,311,691,990

2012 
GHc

NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES
External
Domestic

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CONTRIBUTED BY
Surpluses / (Deficits)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments

TOTAL CURRENT ASSET

2011 
GHc 

2,504,971,236

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Equity Investments
Infrastructure, plant and Equipment
Land
Work In-Progress
Intangible Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSET

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Short-term borrowings 
Trust Monies

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

(495,750,653)
(21,487,839,074)

TUFUOR /
ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

A

5,446,172 
5,490,714,028 

838,936,303 
6335,096,50^

(175,938,801) 
(15,478,774,387) 
(15,654,713,顽

536,274,756
10,614,506

10,011
28,923,137

575,822,410

11,970,339,701
7,630,541,654

19,600,881,354 
25,935,977,857 [[ 

 
(22,048,463,457)] | (15,654,713,18^~~]

ND

- -------------------♦ V •

Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits)

NETWORTH



2012

2018

STATEMENT

738,393,373

CASH PAYMENT FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (553,720,584)(160,555,021)

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

Net cashflow from investment in Non Current Assets (33,072,813)

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

assets

(30,215)

(33,072,813) 
0 
0

(33,072,813)

0
0
0 

(30,215)

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES
GOODSAND SERVICES
INTEREST
OTHER EXPENSES
SOCIAL BENEFITS
OTHER PAYMENTS
TOTAL PAYMENTS

(445,568,884)
(251,061,877)

CURRENT 
GHC

Purchase/Granting of Nonfinancial assets
FIXED ASSET
INVENTORY
WORK-IN-PROGRESS
TOTAL ACQUISITION OF ASSET

PREVIOUS 
GHC 

738,393,373

928,716,497
141,893,466
65,193,366 

1,135,803,329

(595,483,196)
(1,292,113,957)

(871,399,238)
(54,951,739)

(150,934,899)
(180,171)
(177,231) 

(218,715,072) 
(1,296,358,351)

TOTAL ACQUISITION FINANCIAL ASSETS

CASH RECEIPTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
TAXES
OTHER REVENUE
OTHER RECEIPTS
TOTAL RECEIPTS

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

…… 一 OF CASH FLOW FOR THE 
MONTH ENDED MAY 31,2012

Purchase/Granting of Financial 
Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity 
Advances



^HANA GAZETTE^OOCTOBE] 2012
2019

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FORTHF
MONTH ENDED MAY 31,2012

Net cashflow from investment in fianancial assets (468,358)

net cashflow from financing activity 1,832,108,671

net change in stock of cash 1,638,949,195

78,022,879 [(1402,674439)11CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING

(143,631,218)]536,274,756 | ；CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT CLOSE

1,868,499,769 
0 

^868,499,769

CURRENT 
GH(

FOREIGN LIABILITY
INFLOW
OUTFLOW
NET INCURRENCE OF FOREIGN LIABILITY

SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSET
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances
Total Sale/Recovery of Financial assets

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
DOMESTIC
INFLOWS
OUTFLOWS
NET INCURRENCE OF DOMESTIC LIABILITY

PREVIOUS
GHc

0 
(36,391,098) 
36,391,098

0
0 
0 

498,573 
(498,573)
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2020

notes to the accounts

5 Prepayments 28,923,137

10,614,506 
0 
0

10,614,506

0 
10,011 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

10,011

617,898,278
625,246,647

8,482,555
921,980

247,334,236
(4,044,733)

1,495,838,963

786,284,715
900,832,056

4,783,840

7 Equity Investment
Public Boards & Corporations

3 Receivables
Advances
Foreign Missions Remittances & Advances
Other Receivables
Total

CURRENT
GHC

442,598,313 
(209,453,318) 

702,725 
17,176,513 

4,617,859,877 
5,298,364 

(4,337,907,718) 
536,274,756

4 Inventories
Printed Materials and Stationery
Office Facilities, Supplies and Accessories
Electrical Accessories
Oils and Lubricants
Spare Parts
Specialised Stock.
Refreshment Items
Drugs
Medical Supplies
Total

6 Receivables
Statutory Boards & Corporations 
Companies .
Foreign Governments / Agencies 
General
Miscellaneous
Provisions
Total

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Treasury Main Account 
MDA Sub-CF Accounts 
Regional Sub-CF Accounts 
MMDA Sub-CF Accounts 
Tax Revenue Accounts 
NTR Revenue Accounts
Special Accounts 
Total

Companies 
Trust Funds



6 OCTOBER, 2012 
2021

3

9 Land 0

0

(5,446,172)12 Payables

(5,490,714,028)13 Short-Term Borrowing

(838,936,303)
14 Trust Monies

11,970,339,701
15 External Borrowing

7,630,541,654
16 Domestic Borrowing

Goods and Services

11 Intangible Assets
Computer Software

4,983,761
1,696,884,372

862,946
25,891,008 
69,028,833

788,567 
14,641,036 

0
111,212,390

351,564,830
73,384,849
35,144,284

460,093,963

2,345,851
423,075

24,702 
1,893,752 
2,800,804

7,488,185

18 INDIRECT TAX
General Taxes on 
Excises

International Agencies
Total

10 Work - In - Progress
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport Equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Total

8 Infrastructure,Pant and Equipment
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Totai

119,951,177
48,247,839

300,423,517 
0

468,622,534

17 DIRECT TAX
Payable by Individuals 
Payable by Corporations 
Unallocatable
Total

Customs and Other Import Duties
Taxes on Exports
Total

and Other Enterprise
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2022

0 
0 
0
0

1,121,742,597 
47,315,910 

699,441,262 
0 

x0 
0 
0 
0 
0

1,868,499,769

131,089,078 
7,094,569 

461,058 
0

3,248,762
141,893,466

31,942,347
141,660
283,319

16,796,473
49,163,798

16,029,568
0

31,942,347
47,971,915

0 
0 
0 

468,358 
468,358

21 NHIL
SSNIT 
DOMESTIC 
IMPORT
Total

22 LEVIES
Import NHIL
Petroleum Levy - Energy Fund 
Petroleum Levy - Exploration 
Petroleum Levy - Road Fund 
Total

23 LOANS RECEIVED
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables)

24 RECOVERIES
Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances
Total

20 OTHER REVENUE
Property income
Sales of goods and services
Fines, penalties, and forfeits
Voluntary transfers other than grants 
Miscellaneous and unidentified revenue
Total

External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions 
Export Credit Institutions
Total

19 GRANT
From foreign governments
From international organizations
From other general government units
Total
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COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

29 SOCIAL BENEFITS

61,488 
0 

2,149,330 
0 

2,210,818

…二:? benefits in cash 
social benefits in cash

824,168,023 
0 

2,533,200 
44,698,016 

871,399,238

50,588,905
100,345,994

150,934,899

0 
8,787,038 

35,910,978 
0 
0 

, 0
44,698,016

19,168,980
547,895
782,718

1,566,937
5,922,734
1,061,031
8,563,570

15,794,211
279,855

1,108,751
155,058

54,951,739

0
3,776

173,455
177,231

28 INTEREST
Non Residents
Residents
Total

27 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed asset
Inventories
Work In Progress
Finished Goods
Total

----------
Social security benefits in cash 
Social assistance L_.
Employer —
Total

26 GOODS AND SERVICES
Materials and Office Consumables
Utilities
General Cleaning
Rentals
Travel and Transport
Repairs and Maintenance
Training, Seminar and Conference Cost
Consultancy Expenses
Special Services
Other Charges and Fees
Emergency Services
Total

National Pension Contribution 
13% SSF Contribution 
Gratuity
Pension
End of Service Benefit (ESB)
Rounding
Superannuation
Total

Established Position 
Non Established Post 
Allowances
National Pension Contribution
Total

3
_
 

202
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佰
180,17130 OTHER EXPENSES

0 
0 
0 
0 

8,879,599 
1,604,758 

25,906,741 
0 
0 

36,391,098

30,214.84
220,320,137.24 
(1,605,064.86) 
218,745,287

31 LOAN REPAYMENTS
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds 
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions 
Export Credit Institutions
Total

32 OTHER PAYMENTS
Advances
Trust Monies
Accounts Payables
Total
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Bank of Gha:

and Regional Integration

tand Rural Developmentf Local Government

ARIC 
BMS 
BoG 
CAG 
CAGD 
CF 
COA 
CoFoG 
CoE 
DACF 
DIC 
DMD 
EOCO 
FAA 
FAR 
FWSC 
GCB 
GCNet 
GES 
GFS 
GHS 
GIFMIS 
GoG 
GRA 
HIPC 
HRMS 
IAAA 
ICT 
IGF 
IPPD 
MDA 
MDBS 
MDRI 
MEST 
MESW 
MFA 
MINT 
MLGRD

• - - —_ —一 一

Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative 
Ministry of Environment, ~ * 一 
Ministry of Employment 
Ministry c. _ …

9 ・•、

iel and Payroll Database 
Departments and Agencies 

Multi-Donor Budgetary Support
• I

Science and Technology 
'it and Social Welfare

af Foreign Affairs
Ministry of Interior
Ministry ol 一

int-General
:ant - GeneraKs Department

acronyms 
fufit Report Implementation Committee 
Budget Management System 
Bank of Ghana 
Controller and Accounta； 
Controller and Account 
Consolidated Fund 
Chart of Accounts 
Classificstion of Functions of Government 
Compensation of Employees 
Districts Assemblies Common Fund 
Diversiture Implementation Committee 
Debts Management Division 
Economic and Organised Crime Office 
Financial Administration Act, 2003 (Act 654) 
Financial Administration Regulations, 2004 (LI 1802) 
Fair Wages and Salaries Commission 
Ghana Commercial Bank 
Ghana Community Network 
Ghana Education Service
Government Finance Statistics 
Ghana Health Service
Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
Government of Ghana 
Ghana Revenue Authority 
Highly Indebted Poor Country 
Human Resource Management System 
Internal Audit Agency Act 2003 (Act 658) 
Information Technology 
Internally Generated Funds 
Integrated Persons— 
Ministries, 1 .
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acronyms

Social Security and National Insurance Trust 
Single Spine Pay Policy
Social Investment Programme
Treasury Single Account

Public Financial Management
Public Financial Management Reforms Programme

MLNR 
MMDA 
MoC 
MoCC 
MoD 
MoE 
MoEN 
MoFA 
MoFEP 
MoH 
MOI 
MoJAD 
MoRH 
MoT 
MOTI 
MoWAC 
MoYS 
MWRWH 
NITA 
NHIL 
NPT 
OMCs 
PDI 
PIA 
PPA 
PFM 
PUFMARP 
SSNIT 
SSPP 
SIP 
TSA

Ministiy of Lands and Natural Resources
Metropc...- rolitan, Municipal and District Assembly
Ministry of Communication
Ministry of Chieftaincy and Culture
Ministry of Defence
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Energy
Ministry of Food and Agriculture
Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
Ministry of Health
Ministry of Information
Ministry ofjustice and Attorney-Generafs Department
Ministry of Road and Highways
Ministry of Transport
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Ministry ofWomen and Children Affairs
Ministry of Youth and Sports
Ministry of Water Resources； Works and Housing
National Information Technology Agency
National Health Insurance Levy
Non Project Type
Oil Marketing Companies
Public Debt and Investment
Project Implementation Agencies
Public Procurement Act 2003, (Act 663)
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CONTROLLER AND accountant-general ON THE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Included in this report is the Summary of Expenditure by Items and Heads

2.0

3.0

The government adopted

transparency

REPORT OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

The Controller and Accountant-General L 
Financial Administration Act (FAA), 2003 Act 654

is required by Section 40 of the
■ ,. __ _____________ ____ ■ 3 J :;

Financial Administration Regulations [FAR], 2004,
and Regulation 188 of the 
，LI 1802 to prepare and 
----------- \ and Economic 

the Consolidated Fund of the Republic

June
2012

■ A Balance Sheet
■ A Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
■ A Statement of Receipts and Payments
■ A Cash Flow Statement
■ Notes to the Accounts

ADOPTION OF GFS & CHANGE

economic and 
Finance 1

transmit to the Auditor-General and the Minister of Finance 
Planning [MoFEP] the Public Accounts on「一 
of Ghana by the 15th day of the following month.

The financial statements comprise:

^OCTOBER^2gi2_

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

the Public Accounts of Ghana are

established by or under Acts ‘ 
Funds.

IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE COA

J accounting policy the International 
…8............  . 1 aS a；eFZceV Misties, 2001 Manual This manud
Monetary Fund's Government Fina^j^ presentation of fiscal statistics and 
represents a standard for t e improve government
5 resulted in the n
francn^rpnev in its

:accounting and 
the reclassification of the

THE SCOPE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In compliance with Articles 175 and 176 of the Constitution of the Republic of 

Ghana, these financial statements known as

of parliament and retained Internally Generated
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classification and adopting the United Nations Classifications of

4.0

GIFMIS is an integrated computerised financial management system to e for

governments official system and runs on Oracle software. The 2012 budget was

to CAGD and

could redefine the 2011

5.0

CAGD is carrying out an exercise to re-classify the 2011 transactions to fall in line 
with the 2012 classifications. This exercise will be completed by the end of 2012.

i 1-Personnel Emoluments 2-Administration, 3-Service 
1-Compensation of Employees, 2-Use of Goods &

Subsequently, the comparative figures for 2011 are not available now since the 
financial statements have been prepared based on the new classification.

Ghana Integrated Financial Management Information System 
(GIFMIS)

June
2012

m February 2012, the GIFMIS b一…■： ：*板 
mplementation began immediately. However, 

accounts with the new 
on time.

> new 
CoA°was used for the preparation of the 2012 budget and its subsequent 
implementation.

2030

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

general ledger was handed over
- -------- /…555, due to issues involving budgeting

垩.•塑哩 efrors and the ini®】 position that we could redefine the 2011 
Chart of Accounts； these accounts could not be presented

Compensation of Employees

£晚最斜蹴器「s?普您 11 employees on government payroll are

一 一一 are approved, payments were effected without the payment

Expenditure Classes from
钏裁籍X慕。f Nd capital, 4 Interest, 5-Subsidies, 6-Grants, 

7-Social Benefits and 8-other Expense.

A new CoA has been developed on these bases using the International Monetary
Fund's GFS i----------- . -
Functions of Government (COFOG). It has also been structured to cater for 
budgeting and reporting under Programme Based Budgeting (PBB). This

budget preparation and execution； recording, accounting and reporting. It is the 

loaded into GIFMIS and these accounts were prepared using the GIFMIS.

毒嚣 accounts have delayed because of the deployment of the GIFMIS general

all employees on government payroll are to be 
ry Structure with effect from January 1,2010. As andwhen these salaries 

of arrears.
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6.0 SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

The summary of Receipts and Payments for the month of June is as follows:

Receipts (833.91)2,732.641,898.73

476.16(46.88)(523.04)

7.0
deficit offor theThe Revenue

93.94
REVENUE (69.39)1,217.861,148.47EXPENDITURE

(110.36)SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

VARIANCE 
GHCM

GH4M 
1,310.07

June 2012 
BUDGET

GHCM
1,375.69

June 2012 
ACTUAL

June 2012 
VARIANCE

June
2012

Payments
Net Receipts/ Payments

and Expenditure 
GH(t85.81million as follows:

- ] 12
BUDGET 

GHCM
1,038.11

June 2012 
ACTUAL 

_GHCM _ 
Ti3£o5

GHCM
2,685.76

3rd OCTOBER, 2012

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED

During 2011, government approved a 20% increase of salaries for all public 
officers on the Single Spine Salary Structure with effect from January 1, 2011. 
Another increase of 18% was approved for all with effective date as January 1, 
2012. The payments of salaries have always been accounted for on cash basis and 

not reflect the actual 2012

SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

month resulted in a

■ . 一 — — E

officers on the Single Spine Salary Structure , “ .
approved for all with effective date as January 1, 
.，一 — ■ ・

therefore the payment of arrears in 2012 will 
expenditure.
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the consolidated fund
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON

additional statistics8.0

revenue8.1

of
favourable variance of GH(tll5.19million.

GHC535.08million against

grant during the month as against the budgeted figure of GH(t96.33

GHC69.39million,

Compensation of Employees

budgeted. This gives-

of

GH(t586.54millionas against the expected amount 
a favourable variance of GH(tll5.19million.

June
2012

was l 
resulting in

GHC901.21million against 
of

8.1.3 Grants
There was no 
million.

8.1.1 DIRECT TAX 
Direct tax amounted to 
GHC471.35 million, indicating

GH(t62.69million against the budgeted 
. i a favourable variance J

8.2.2 Goods and Services
Goods and Services paid was L 二一
GH(t639.90million. Actual expenditure

* --

8.2 EXPENDITURE
Expenditure is made up of Compensation of Employees, Use of Goods and 
Services, Consumption of Fixed Capital, Interest Subsidies, Grants, Social* Benefits, 
Other Expenses. The total for the month amounted to GH(rl,217.86 million as 
against the budget of GH<tl；148.47million, resulting in a favourable variance of

8.1.4 Other Revenue
Non-Tax Revenue for the month was GH(tl0.43million as against a budgeted 
figure of GH(tl7.38million, giving rise to an adverse variance of GH(t6.95million.

GHd316.65million against the budgeted figure ° 
，…二—j was therefore GH(t323.25million lower 

than budgeted, indicating a favourable variance.

8.2.1 Compensation of Employees
Compensation of Employees for the month was
GHC508.56million budgeted. This gives- an unfavourable variance
GH(T392.65million. '

8.2.3 Non Financial Assets
Non Financial Assets for the month 
figure of GHt233.99 million 
GH(tl71.30million.

8.1.2 Indirect TaxIndirect tax was GH(t535.08million against a budget amount of 
GH<t453.04million. This resulted in a favourable variance of GH(t82.04 million.
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FUND

8.2.4 PUBLIC DEBT

Debt repayment is made up as follows：

Domestic Debt

There was no

9.0 APPROPRIATION

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

10.0 CONCLUSION

RAPHAEL

UTILISED APPRORIATION AS JUNE

UNUTILISED APPROPRIATION

repayment amounted to GHcU01.07million.

External Debt paid for the period.

I wish to take this opportunity to thank all the staff of CAGD and other public 
officers for the immense contributions towards the preparation of the Report and 
the Public Accounts of the Consolidated Fund.

~ j with Section 40 of the FAA, 2003 (Act 654) and 
188 of the FAR, 2004 (LI 1802), the Report

In compliance therefore 
Regulation : 
onthe 1

June
2012

CONTROLLER AND

and the Public Accounts
ConsoWa'ied Fund for the month of June, 2012 are hereby presented：

GHC
MILLION

19,935.77

8,267.77

11,668.00

Itufuor
ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL 

8
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STATEMENT
2012

VARAINCEACTUALbudget
GHCGHCGH(NOTES

RECEIPT
586,540,209.50 115,191,348.42471,348,861.0817DIRECT TAX
535,080,669.23 82,039,488.73453,041,180.5018INDIRECT TAX

(96,334,952.67)0.0096,334,952.6719GRANTS
(6,954,256.51)10,428,243.4917,382,500.0020

41,001,887.57 (15,843,451.35)56,845,338.9221NHIL

15,568,943.9015,568,943.900.00LEVIES

1,215,916,489.341,496,652,310.34280,735,821.0023LOANS RECEIVED

485,622.34485,622.340.0024RECOVERIES

1,310,069,232.202,685,757,886.371,375,688,654.17TOTAL RECEIPTS

PAYMENTS

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES (392,645,238)508,562,882.2725 901,208,120.15

GOODSAND SERVICES 221,608,31626 266,393,104.52 44,784,788.99

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 233,990,922.21 171,302,46762,688,455.71

INTEREST 28 (138,915,295)114,859,962.25 253,775,256.77

SOCIAL BENEFITS 29 24,658,688.50 24,500,733157,955.22

OTHER EXPENSES 30 567,862,825.61 549,928,99217,933,833.41
LOAN REPAYMENTS 31 (1,301,068,456)0.00 1,301,068,455.94
OTHER PAYMENTS 32 182,397,471.83 151,025,133.57
total payments 1,898,725,857.18 2,732,641,999.76

NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH
(46,884,113.39)

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING
536,274,755.70

CASH/BANK BALANCE AS AT END
489,390,642.31

OTHER REVENUE

OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS 
FOR THE MONTH ENDED JUNE 30,

31,372,338
(833,916,1旬］
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FOR THE MONTH ENDED

REVENUE NOTES

DIRECT TAX 17 586,540,210 294,053,287

INDIRECT TAX 18 535,080,669 384,688,585

GRANTS 19 0 272,274,303

OTHER REVENUE 20 10,428,243 ' 39,672,778

I 1,132,049,1221 [TOTAL REVENUE 990,688,953

EXPENDITURE

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 25 901,208,120 385,004,172

204,547,96344,784,78926USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

00CONSUMPTION OF FIXED CAPITAL

0253,775,25728INTEREST

0157,95529SOCIAL BENEFITS

27,923,21517,933,83330OTHER EXPENSES
| 1,217,859,955)厂 617,475,3厕

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
,603-85,810,832

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

2011 
GHC

2012 
GHC

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURF 
FOR THE MONTH ENDED JUNE 30 2012 E



LANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30, 2012BA
NOTES

3,337,379,448TOTAL ASSETS 3,902,837,023

LIABILITIES 18,618,879,033

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

NETWORTH (22,134.274,289)]「 (15,281,499,58胡

rASI TUFUOR

CONTROLLER AND ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

15
16

12
13
14

6
7
8
9
10
11

2
3
4
5

2012 
GHC

NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES
External
Domestic

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(646,435,215)
(21,487,839,074)

1,495,838,963 
1,696,884,372 

171,428,785 
0

10,228,325 
0 

3,374,380,446

2011
GH(t

3,337,379,448

WHAEL

373,213,603
(15,654,713,188)

CONTRIBUTED BY
Surpluses / (Deficits)
Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits)

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Short-term borrowings
Trust Monies

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments

TOTAL CURRENT ASSET

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Equity Investments
Infrastructure, plant and Equipment
Land
Work In-Progress
Intangible Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSET

11,970,339,701
7,825,994,990

19,796,334,690

7,024,941
5,490,844,546
742,907,135

8,240,776,622

489,390,642
10,132,787

10,011
28,923,137

528,456,577

26,037,11*312] | 18,618,879,035 ]
(22,134,274,289)| | (12,565,741,5珂
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for THE

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH PAYMENT FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(180,261,231)ANET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

(62,688,456)B
NET CASHFLOW FROM

CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

total acquisition financial ASSETS

(62,688,456) 
0 
0

(62,688,456)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW「 
MONTH ENDED JUNE 30,2012

2012
GHc

Compensation Of Employees
Goods And Services
Interest
Other Expenses
Social Benefits
Other Payments

TOTAL PAYMENTS

Purchase/Granting Of Nonfinancial Assets
Fixed Asset
Inventory
Work-In-Progress

TOTAL ACQUISITION OF ASSET

INVESTMENT IN NON CURRENT ASSETS

Purchase/Granting of Financial assets 
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances

0 
0 
0 

(3,903) 
(3,903)

CASH RECEIPTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Taxes
Other Revenue
Other Receipts

TOTAL RECEIPTS

(901,208,120)
(44,784,789)

(253,775,257)
(17,933,833)

(157,955) 
(151,021,231) 

(1,368,881,185f

1,121,620,879
10,428,243
56,570,831

1,188,619,954
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2012

GHC

(481,719)CNET CASHFLOW FROM INVESTMENT IN FIANANCIAL ASSETS

0NET INCURRENCE OF FOREIGN LIABILITY

195,583,85?]
DNET CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

(46,884,113)(A+B+C+D)NET CHANGE IN STOCK OF CASH

536,274,7诃
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING

489,390,642CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT CLOSE

0
0

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE 
MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Domestic Liability
Inflows
Outflows

NET INCURRENCE OF DOMESTIC LIABILITY

SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSET
Securities other than shares
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances

TOTAL SALE/RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Foreign Liability
Inflow
Outflow

0
0
0

__485^622_ 
(485^622)

1,496,652,310
l,301,068,45Q
195,583^854
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

28,923,1375 Prepayments

10,132,787 
0 
0

10,132,787

0 
10,011 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

10,011

786,284,715
900,832,056

4,783,840
4,983,761

1,696,884,372

617,898,278
625,246,647

8,482,555
921,980

247,334,236
(4,044,733)

1,495,838,963

2012 
GHC

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Treasury Main Account 
MDA Sub-CF Accounts 
Regional Sub-CF Accounts 
MMDA Sub-CF Accounts 
Tax Revenue Accounts 
NTR Revenue Accounts 
Special Accounts 
Total

418,455,316 
(331,361,087) 

702,725 
17,176,513 

5,802,447,817 
5,362,725 

(5,423,393,367) 
489390,642

4 Inventories
Printed Materials and Stationery
Office Facilities, Supplies and Accessories
Electrical Accessories
Oils and Lubricants
Spare Parts
Specialised Stock
Refreshment Items
Drugs
Medical Supplies
Total

7 Equity Investment
Public Boards & Corporations
Companies
Trust Funds
International Agencies
Total

3 Receivables
Advances
Foreign Missions Remittances & Advances
Other Receivables
Total

6 Receivables
Statutory Boards & Corporations
Companies
Foreign Governments / Agencies
General
Miscellaneous
Provisions
Total
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notes to the accounts

9 Land 0

0

12 Payables 7,024,941 .

13 Short-Term Borrowing 5,490,844,546

14 Trust Monies 670,708,666

15 External Borrowing 11,970,339,701

16 Domestic Borrowing 7,825,994,990

11 Intangible Assets 
Computer Software

18 INDIRECT TAX
General Taxes on Goods and Services
Excises
Customs and Other Import Duties
Taxes on Exports
ToUl

17 DIRECT TAX
Payable by Individuals
Payable by Corporations and Other Enterprise
Unallocatable
Total

145,641,697
46,953,873 

342,485,099 
0

535,080,669

2012 
GHC

414,277,992
148,321,757
23,940,461

586,540,210

883,412
29,206,180 

123,612,404 
. 2,287,804
15,169,338 

0
171,159,139

2,830,409
665,761

24,702
1,893,752
4,813,702

10,228,325

10 Work - In - Progress
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport Equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Total

8 Infrastructure,Pant and Equipment
Dwellings
Non Residential Buildings
Other structures
Transport equipment
Other machinery and equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Total
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

0 
0 
0
0

7,324,740 
0 

33,677,148 
41,001,888

1,072,537,495 
76,079,706 

348,035,109 
0 

、 0
0 
0 
0 
0 

1,496,652,310

64,361
8,150,547

209,403 
0

2,003,932
(10,428,243)

128,183
256,367

15,184,394
15,568,944

22 LEVIES
Petroleum Levy - Energy Fund 
Petroleum Levy - Exploration 
Petroleum Levy - Road Fund 
Total

21 NHIL
SSNIT
DOMESTIC
IMPORT
Total

19 GRANT
From foreign governments
From international organizations
From other general government units
Total

2012 
GHC

23 LOANS RECEIVED
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions
Export Credit Institutions
Total

20 OTHER REVENUE
Property income
Sales of goods and services
Fines, penalties, and forfeits
Voluntary transfers other than grants 
Miscellaneous and unidentified revenue 
Total
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

20,467 
0 

2,740,141 
0 

2,760,607

2012 
GHC

857,473,066 
0 

873,583 
42,861,471

901,208,120

0 
0 
0 

481,719 
481,719

25 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 
Established Position 
Non Established Post 
Allowances
National Pension Contribution*

Total

0 
7,741,113 

35,120,358
0 
0 
0 

42,861,471

24 RECOVERIES
Securities other than shares 
Loans
Shares and other equity
Advances •
Total

10,587,752
594,371
85,339

263,466
3,382,750
344,293

23,662,182
4,776,647
192,927
841,848
53,215

44,784,789
27 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fixed asset
Inventories
Work In Progress
Finished Goods
Total

*National Pension Contribution
13% SSF Contribution
Gratuity
Pension
End of Service Benefit (ESB)
Rounding
Superannuation

Total

26 GOODS AND SERVICES
Materials and Office Consumables
Utilities
General Cleaning
Rentals
Travel and Transport
Repairs and Maintenance
Training, Seminar and Conference Cost
Consultancy Expenses
Special Services
Other Charges and Fees
Emergency Services
Total
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30 OTHER EXPENSES 17,933,833

32,642,961
221,132,296

253,775,257

3,903
152,600,000

(1,578,769)
151,025,134

28 INTEREST
Non Residents
Residents
Total

29 SOCIAL BENEFITS
Social security benefits in cash
Social assistance benefits in cash
Employer social benefits in cash
Total

32 OTHER PAYMENTS
Advances
Trust Monies
Accounts Payables
Total

1,019,628,385 
128,858,298 
152,581,773 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0

1,301,068,456

2012 
GHC

73,446
970

83,539
157,955

31 LOAN REPAYMENTS
Short Term Borrowings /Payables 
Medium Term Borrowings/ Payables 
Stocks and Bonds (Long Term Payables) 
External Counterpart Funds
Bilateral Loans
Multilateral Loans
External Commercial Institutions
Domestic Commercial Institutions
Export Credit Institutions
Total
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